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July 6, 2015




Town ol /NN ™

Johnstown Agenda
Monday, July 6, 2015
Town Hall, Council Chambers
450 So. Parish Avenune
7:00 PM

MISSTON STATEMENT-“The mission of the government of the Town of Johnstown is to provide leadership based upon trust and
integrity, commitment directed toward responsive service delivery, and vision for enhancing the quality of life in our community,

Members of the audience ave invited 1o speak at the Council meeting. Public Comment (item No. 3) is reserved for citizen
comments on items not contained on the printed agenda. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. When
several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are requested to select a spokesperson to state that position.
If you wish to speak at the Town Council meeting, please fill out a sign-up sheet and present it to the Town Clerk,

1) CALL TO ORDER
A} Pledge of Allegiance

2) ROLL CAlLL

3) AGENDA APPROVAL

4) RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

5) PUBLIC COMMENT (three-minute limit per speaker)

The “Consent Agenda” is a group of voutine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote. The Mayor will ask if any
Council member wishes to have an ifem discussed ov if there is public comment on those ordinances marked with an *asterish.
The Council member may then move to have the subject item removed from the Consent Agendua for discussion separately.

6} CONSENT AGENDA
A) Town Council Meeting ~June 15, 2015

B) Resolution No. 2015-08, Opposing Envirotech Services’ Application for Change of Zone (Weld County Case Number:
COZ135-0001)

C) First Amendment to Market Place Drive Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement

7) STAFE REPORTS
8) OLD BUSINESS

9) NEW BUSINESS
A) Consider Subdivision Development and Improvement Agreement for ‘Thompson Crossing II, Filing No. 1
B) Presentation of 2014 Annual Audit Report — Mr. Raymend E. Derr, P.C. (CPA)
C) Consider Approval of Tamarack Consulting, LLC Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost Certification Services
D) Consider Approval of McCloud & Associates Engagement Agreement

10) COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS
11) MAYOR’S COMMENTS
12) ADJOURN

NOTICE OF ACCOMODATION
If you need special assistance to participate in the meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (970) 587-4664. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the Town to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting,




AGENDA ITEMS 6A-C

CONSENT
AGENDA

e Council Minutes — June 15, 2015
e Resolution No. 2015-08
(Opposing Envirotech Services’
Change of Zone)

e Market Place Drive Reimbursement
Agreement — First Amendment




TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION

AGENDA DATE: July 6, 2015

ITEM NUMBER: 6A-C

SUBJECT: Consent Agenda

ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Consent Agenda
PRESENTED BY: Town Clerk

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The following items are included on the Consent Agenda, which may be
approved by a single motion approving the Consent Agenda:

A) Town Council Minutes-June 15, 2015

B) *Resolution No. 2015-08, Opposing Envirotech Services’ Application for Change of Zone (Weld County
Case Number: COZ15-0001)

C) **First Amendment to Market Place Drive Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement

*Resolution No. 2015-08 expresses opposition to the Envirotech Services rezoning application to Weld County. The
proposed rezoning would change the zoning of approximately 137 acres located east of Weld County Road 13 and
immediately south of US Highway 34 from A Agriculture to I-2 Industrial.

In a work session held on June 1, 2015 Town Council discussed the referral from Weld County of the Envirotech
Rezoning, and provided general direction to the Town Attorney for preparation of the resolution.

**Mr. Roger Pilant General Manager of RV Boatel, LIC has submitted a request for a five (5) year extension of the
Marketplace Drive Reimbursement Agreement which was approved by Town Council on July 22, 2005. The pace of
development along Marketplace Drive has been below expectations. The five (5) year extension is provided for in
the Municipal Code. The Town Attorney prepared the First Amendment to the Market Place Drive Infrastructure
Reimbursement Agreement.

LEGAL ADVICE: The entire Consent Agenda may be approved by a motion of the Town Council approving the
Consent Agenda, which automatically approves each and every item listed on the Consent Agenda. If a Council
member wishes to have a specific discussion on an individual item included with the Consent Agenda, they may
move to remove the item from the Consent Agenda for discussion,

FVINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Agenda

SUGGESTED MOTION:
For Approval: I move to approve the Consent Agenda.

For Denial:

Reviewed:

n Mangber




COUNCIL
MINUTES




The Town Council of the Town of Johnstown met on Monday, June 15, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers at 450 S. Parish Avenue, Johnstown.

Mayor Romanowski led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call:
Those present were: Councilmembers Berg, James, Lebsack, Mellon and Mitchell

Those absent were: Councilmember Molinar Jr,
Also present: Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, Roy Lauricello, Town Manager John Franklin,

Town Planner, Tom Hellen, Public Works Director, Brian Phillips, Police Chief and Diana Seele
Town Clerk/Treasurer

3

Agenda Approval

Councilmember Mellon a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve the Agenda as
submitted. Motion carried with a unanimous vote.

Consent Agenda

Councilmember James made a motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to-amend the Consent
Agenda to move Resolution 2015-07 to Ttem 9E and approve the following items:

e June 1, 2015 - Town Council Meeting Minutes

s May Financial Statements

» Resolution No. 2015-06, Approving Thompson Crossing II, Filing No. 1 Final Plat
Motion carried with a unanimous vote.

New Business

A. Consider Amended Development Agreement for 2534 West — This agreement addresses
improvements along the frontage of the hotel site to be built by Mr. Hamid Eslan. Mr. Eslan
agrees to pay the costs of the frontage improvements when required, and will furnish a
completion guarantee (letter of credit). Councilmember James made a motion seconded by
Councilmember Lebsack to approve the Amended Development Agreement for 2534 West.
Motion carried with a unanimous vote.

B. Consider Wholesale Municipal Water Sale Agreement with Central Weld Water District —
Town staff negotiated an agreement with Central Weld County Water District (CWCWD) for a
connection to their system at WCR 17 and WCR 42 to serve as an emergency water supply in the
event the 12” water transmission line in WCR 17 or the booster pump station serving the Pioneer
Ridge subdivision fails, Councilmember Berg made a motion seconded by Councilmember
James to approve the Wholesale Municipal Water Sales Agreement with Central Weld County
Water District, and authorize the Mayor to sign it. Motion carried with an aye vote.
Councilmember Mellon voted no.




Johnstown, Colorado -2- - June 15, 2015

C. Ratification of Approval of Ray Real Estate Service Agreement and BBC Research &
Consulting Proposal — Ray Real Estate and BBC Research and Consulting was retained to assist
the town in revenue projections and expenditures for the Carson Development. Because of the
expedited nature of the project, on Friday, June 5® the Town Clerk emailed the
agreement/proposal to the Mayor and Councilmembers to obtain their position on the
agreement/proposal prior to the June 15, 2015 Town Council meeting. Seven response in favor
of authorizing the Mayor or Mayor Pro tem to sign the agreement and approving the proposal
was received. This agenda item ratifies their previous approval. Councilmember James made a
motion seconded by Councilmember Berg to ratify the approval of the Ray Real Estate Service
Agreement and the BBC Research & Consulting Proposal. Motion carried with a unanimous
vote,

D. Consider Resolution 2015-07, Resolution in Opposition to Martin Marietta’s Application for
Use by Special Review ( Case Number USR 15-0027) — Councilmember Mellon made a motion
seconded by Councilmember Lebsack to approve Resolution No. 2015-07, Resolution in
Opposition to Martin Marietta’s Application for Use by Special Review (Case Number USR 15-
0027). Motion carried with a unanimous vote..

There being no further business to come before Council the meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

Mayor

Town Clerk/Treasurer




RESOLUTION
No. 2015-08




TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08

OPPOSING ENVIROTECH SERVICES’ APPLICATION FOR CHANGE
OF ZONE (WELD COUNTY CASE NUMBER: C0OZ15-0001)

WHEREAS, EnviroTech Services submitted an application for a change of zone from
A (Agricultural) to I-2 (Industrial) for property owned by Weld 34, LLC, located south of and
adjacent to U.S. Highway 34 and east of and adjacent to Weld County Road 13 (“Property™); and

WHEREAS, the Weld County Department of Planning Services referred the matter to the
Town of Johnstown (the “Town”) for review and recommendation; and

WHEREAS, the Town has adopted the “Johnstown Area Comprehensive Plan,” a copy of
which may be viewed at www.townofjohnstown.com/DocumentCenter/Home/View/192
(“Comprehensive Plan™); and

WHEREAS, the Property is within the Growth Management Area contemplated in the
Comprehensive Plan, an area into which urban development and annexation is anticipated to
occur in the future; and

WHEREAS, the Town designated the Property for commercial use in the Comprehensive
Plan; and

WHLEREAS, the proposed industrial use is inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Property abuts the existing Indianhead residential subdivision and is in
close proximity to anticipated residential development within the current Town boundaries; and

WHIEREAS, the proposed industrial uses would negatively impact the Indianhead
residential subdivision by exposing the homes to industrial operations, forcing them to coexist
with large, otherwise unplanned, industrial development and creating potential losses of property
value, quiet enjoyment and quaiity of life; and

WHEREAS, on a broader scale, the Town envisions growth along the U.S. Highway 34
corridor to include commercial, residential and mixed use development, consistent and
harmonious with the current development; and

WHEREAS, the proposed industrial use is not only inconsistent with the Town’s vision of
the growth along the U.S. Highway 34, but has considerable potential to lead to an expanded and
unplanned heavy industrial presence along the U.,S, Highway 34 corridor; and

WHEREAS, after careful review and consideration, the Town finds that the proposed
change of zone, if permitted, would create undesirable and harmful consequences, inconsistent
with the Town’s long-range planning and inconsisient with the best growth and development
along the U.S. Highway 34 corridor; and




WHEREAS, the change of zone from A (Agricultural) to I-2 (Industrial) is not in the best
interests of the Town or the citizens of the Town and surrounding areas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT:

L. ‘The Town Council opposes EnviroTech Services” application for change of zone
from A (Agricultural) to 1-2 (Industrial) for the Property.

2. The Town Council respecifully requests that Weld County deny EnyiroTech,
Services’ application for change of zone.

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of July, 2015.

ATTEST: TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

By: By:
Diana Seele, Town Clerk Mark Romanowski, Mayor




REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO MARKET PLACE DRIVE
INFRASTRUCTURE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MARKET PLACE DRIVE INFRASTRUCTURE
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT is entered into this___ day of July, 2015, by and between
the Town of Johnstown, Celorado, a home rule municipality of the State of Colorado
(*JTohnstown”), and RV Boatel, LL.C, a Colorado Limited Liability Company.

(Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the same meaning ascribed to such terms
in the Market Place Drive Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement.)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2005, Johnstown and RV Boatel, LLC, entered into the Market
Place Drive Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement to set forth their agreement and
understanding regarding reimbursement of the cost of public improvements from Benefited
Property Owners pursuant fo Article V, Sections 13-91 through 13-94 of the Johnstown Municipal
Code; and

WHEREAS, the Market Place Drive Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement provides
for a term of ten-years from the date of the execution of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Article V, Sections 13-92 of the Johnstown Municipal Code provides that
the term may be extended for an additional five-year period upon petition by the person who paid
for the initial construction; and

WHEREAS, RV Boatel, LLC has petitioned to extend the Market Place Drive
Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement for an additional five-year period; and

WHEREAS, Johnstown desires to extend the term of the Market Place Drive Infrastructure
Reimbursement Agreement to allow RV Boatel, L1LC additional time to recover Reimbursement.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and obligations expressed herein,
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby

acknowledged, Johnstown and RV Boatel, LLC agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are incorporated into the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.




2. Extension of Term of Market Place Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement. The
term of the Market Place Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement, set forth in Section 2(g)
thereof, shall be extended for an additional five-year period. The Market Place Infrastructure
Reimbursement Agreement shall terminate on July 21, 2020.

3. Recovery of Interest During Renewal Period. Article V, Sections 13-93 of the
Johnstown Municipal Code provides that an interest component may be added to the cost of the
public improvements subject to reimbursement during the initial ten-year term, but not to
subsequent periods. RV Boatel, LLC is thus precluded from recovering additional interest during
the five-year renewal period set forth herein,

4. Validity of Matket Place Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement. Except and
only as expressly modified herein, the provisions of the Market Place Infrastructure
Reimbursement Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed
the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

By:
Diana Seele, Town Clerk Mark Romanowski, Mayor




DATE: 07/06/15

NOTES
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SUBDIVISION
DEVELOPMENT
AND
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
(Thompson Crossing II, Filing No. 1)




TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION

AGENDA DATE: July 6, 2015
ITEM NUMBER: %A

SUBJECT: Consider Subdivision Development and Improvement Agreement - Thompson Crossing II, Filing
No. 1

ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Approval of Subdivision Development and Improvement Agreement for
Thompson Crossing II, Filing No, 1

PRESENTED BY: John Franklin, Town Planner and Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: The Final Plat for Thompson Crossing 11, Filing No. 1 was aporoved. by

Resolution No. 2015-07. The Agreement requires the Developer to develop the property in accordance with the

subdivision plat that was approved previously by the Council. The Agreement requires the Developer to install

public and private improvements at the Developer's cost in accordance with the Town's specifications. Special
provigions include;

o Completion of High Plains Blvd. as a rural section with two travel lanes and shoulders from the north end of
the subdivision to Ronald Reagan Blvd., including construction of a railroad crossing. A special rural section
would be constructed in front of two adjoining parcels. A property owner, Anita Comer has requested deferral
of paving in front of her property until High Plains Blvd. is constructed from the south — if that is acceptable,
the developer agrees to provide a surety for completion of the special Rural Section along the Comer parcel.

e Prorata share payment towards the widening of the Big Thompson River Bridge to accommodate two lanes of
traffic plus shoulders, which is estimated to cost $450,000, The developer agrees to pay an amount of $135.00
per dwelling unit, based upon 245 total lots.

» The Developer agrees to install a ‘Speed Table’ on Tarragon Drive in a location and design approved by
Town staff, which will be in a location approximately 990° west of this filing.

e Developer agrees to purchase of water taps from the Town.

Developer may request reimbursement for the cost of the Neighborhood Park.
e Developer may request Town approval of a Reimbursement Agreement for applicable off-site costs.

LEGAL ADVICE: The Town Attorney drafted the attached public improvements development agreement,

FINANCIAL ADVICE: N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider approval of the public improvements development agreement.

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:

For Approval: 1 move to approve the Subdivision Development and Improvement Agreement for Thompson
Crossing 11, Filing No. 1.

For Denial: I move to deny approval of the Subdivision Development and Improvement Agreement for
Thompson Crossing II, Filing No. 1.

-

n Manager

eviewed:




AGREEMENT




SURDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
TOWN OF JOBNSTOWN
(THOMPSON CROSSING II, FILING NO. 1)

This Subdivision Development aund Improvement Agroement (“Agreement”), made
and entered into by and between the Town of Jolmstown, Colorado, a muymicipal corporation (the
“Town'} and Lomas-Somerset Meadews, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company (the
“Developer™).

WITNESSETH:

. WHERBAS, Develoger is the owner of a patcel of land situated in the Town of Jolinstowr,
County of Lavimer, State of Colorado, the description of which is set forth on Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and Tncotporated herein by this reference (fhe “Property™); and

WHEREAS, Developer soels to develop the Property and to designate such development
a8 Thompson Crossing I, Filing No. 1 {(“*Development™); and

WHERFAS, Developer has stbmitted & final plat depicting the Development, which final
plat is attached hereto as Exhibit “B-17 and incorporated herein by this reference (“Final Plat”);
and

WHEREAS, the Town Council approved the Findl Plat by passage of Resolution No,
2015-06, containing teris and conditions of approval of the Final Plat, which Resolution is
attached hereto as Exhibit “B-2” and incowporated herein by this reference {(“Resolution’); and

WHEREAS, Developer understands and agrees that, us a further vondition of approval of
fho Final Plat, Developer s required to congtruct cortain subdivision inaprovements 1o the Property,
that Developer is responsible for the costs and expensey of those subdivision improvements unloss
otherwise provided herefn, and that te subdivision improvements contemplated herein are
reasonable, necessary, appropriate, and directly benefit the Developmant; and

WHEREAS, Developer agreas to undertake and mmﬁlste the Develapment in accordance
with this Agreoment, the Final Plat, the Resolution, the Town’s ordinances, resolutions and
regulations and ali other applicable laws and regulstions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises cited above and the rrtual
covenants and protaises contained hereln, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Town and
Developer agree as follovws:




DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following words and terms shall be defined as
follows:

11 “Approved Plans” shall mean: (1) with respect to the Public Improvements, the
approved “Civil Engiveering Construgtion Plans” related to the Development and on file with
Town; and () with respeet to the Private Improvements, the approved “ibe Site Development
Plan” related to the Development and on file with Tow.

{7 “Developer” shall mean the owner(s) of the Property deseribed in Exhibit “A”
aud any heits, SUCCESE0TS, AS3igns or-transferees of any of the Property desctibed in Exhibit “A.”

13 “Civil Engineering Construetion Plans” shall mean the approved engineerng
plans for construction, installation and improvement of the Public Improvements.

14 “Development” shall moean all the Property, property rights and subdivision
improvements within the legal description in Exhibit “A.”

15 “Dry Utilitles” shall mean sleciricity, natural gas, cable and telephone.

1.6 “Muintenance Guarantee® shall mesn 8 guarantec that the Subdivision
Fmprovements constructed shall be free from defects and failores as more fully doscribed in
Parographs 5.2 and 5.4 bolow,

17 “Private Improvements” shall wween, without limitation, the construction,

installation and improvement of privately owned and maintained commen improvements

including, but not limited to, stormyvater inprovements, landseaping, itrigation, fencing, entry
signs, street signs and posts, street lighting, parks and open space, trails, postal service boxes and
sehioo! bus stop shelfers. '

1.8 “Public Improvements” shall mean, without lnitation, the constroction,

. installation, improvement and dedication of public improvements, including, but oot Hmited fo

pubilic thoroughtires and sireets, ganitary sewer facilitics, water line facilities, drainage favilities,
irtigation structures and ofher public facilities and improvements to serve the Development.

1.9 “Site Development Plan® shall mean the approved plans for the construction,
installation and imyprovement of the Private Improvements,

110 “Subdivisien Improvements” shall mean the Public Improvements, Private
Improverents and Dry-Utiiities,




111 ®Town” shall mean the Town of Johnstown, Colotado.

1,12 “Town Englueer” shall mean fhe professional engineer designated by the Town.
Manager to perform the obligations set forthin this Agreement.

113 “Town Manager” shall include the Town Manager and his authordzed designees,

114 “Town Official” shall include the Town Mansger, Town Attorney, Town
‘Treasurer, Town Engincer, Town Planner and fheir suthorized designses.

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS

A Public Improvements

%1 Pre- Conpstriction

Engiucering Services: Developer shall fuenish, af its own expende, all
engineering services in connection with constraction, ingtallation and improvement of the Public
Tmprovements, Engineering services shall e parformed by a professional engineer registered in
the State of Colorade. Engitisering services shall consist of, butnotbe litntted to, survey, designs,
plans snd profiles, specifications, drawings, estimates, ootsbruction administration, and the
fornighing of necessary dooumenty 1n connection therewith, including but not lmited to final
sngineeting drawings, final sewer and water design plans and final drainage plans (the “Civil
Engineering Construction Plans™).

b, Civil Engigecriug Constraction Plana: Prior to commencing construction
of the Public Tuprovements, Developer shall submit the Civil Engineeting Construction Plans to
the Town Bugineer fur review, Construction ofthe Public Improvements shall pot cornmenee until
the Town provides written notice of approval of the Civil Hngineering Construction Plans,
Developer shall not thereafter modify the approved Civil Engineering Constrnction Plans without
fhe written. apptoval of the Town, The Town's review and approval of the Civil Engincering
Constreichion Plans shalt not limit or affset Developer’s responsibility or lishility for design,
construcion and installation of the Public Inprovements, and Developer agrees to save and hold
the Town harrless from any clatms, fault or negligence attributable to such design, constryction
and instliation, other than negligent designy which are required by the Town over Developer’s
written objection,

c. Riohts-of-Way, Easenents, Permits and Use Tax: Prior to commencing
construction of the Public Improvements, Developer shall acquire, at ity own expense, good md
sufficlent rights-of-way or sasements, clear of any encumbrances, on all lands and facilities, if atty,
traversed by the proposed Public Improvements. All such tights-of-way and easements shall be
conveyed to the Town arid the documents of cotiveyance shall be firrnished to the Town Manager
for recording, At the Town'sTequest, Developer shall provide at its sole expense a policy of title
insumnoe insuring title in the Town, free ned clear of all liens and encumbrances, for all land,




property and easemients dedicated or conveyad to the Town or for public wse. In addition,
Developer shall obtain all the requisite permits and loenses necessary for constructien of the
Public Improvements. Developer shall also pay all applicable use tax due and owing to the Tow,

20 Construction of Public Improvements: Upon satisfaction of the conditions set
forth in Paragraph 2.1, Developer shall construot the Publie fmprovements &t its own expense in
accordance wifh this Agreement, the Final Plat, the Resolution, the Civil Engineeting Constraetion
Plans, the Town’s ordinances, tesolutions and regutations and all other spplicable laws and
rogulations. All Public Improvements shall be installed and constructed within the rights<of-way
ot ensements dedicated to the Town. Unless otherwise approved by the Town in writlng, afl
materials used for constructing the Public Improvements shall be new and both worlmanship atd
materlals shall be of good quality.

23 Constraction Sehedule: Developer shall construct the Public kmprovements in
accordance with the scheduls of public improvements set forth on “Exhibit €,” attached hereto
and incotporated herein by reference (“Schedule of Public Improvemenis”). Onee construction
baging, Developer shall keep the Town Menager informed by weslkly status reports of the progress
of the work and a projection of when the Public Tnprovements will be completed ss well as the
gost of such Public Inprovernents.

14  Tosting and Inspection: Developer shall employ, at its own expense, 4 gualifiod
independent testing company, approved by the Town. Engineer, to perform all testing of materials
or construction that may be reavonably required by the Town. Developer shall firnish certified
coples of test resnlts to the Town Bngincer. Al all times during construction of fhe Public
Imprevements, the Town. ghall have the vight, but not the doty, to inspect materials and
wotkmanship, at Developer's cost. All materials and work must conform to the Civil Enginecring
Construction Plans. Any material or wotk not conforming to the Civil Pogineeting Construction
Plans shall be promptly temoved, repaired or replaced, st Developer's expanse. and to the
gatisfaction of the Town Bogineer.

2.5 Completion of Constritotion: Developer shall conplete construction of the Public
Trprovements no later than cighteen (18) months from the commencement of the construction,
unless such completion date is extended for reasons beyond the reasonable control of Developer
and Doveloper has obiained the Town Manager’s written consent f0 the extension.

3, Private hmprovemenis

41  Pre- Construction:  Prior to  commencing construotion  of the Private
Tmprovements, Developer shall submit a Site Development Plan to the Town. The Site
Development Plan shall contain the proposed Private Improvements for the Development,
inchuding a plan for stormeater improvements, an irrigation system, landscaping, fencing, entry-
way signage, street signs and posty, street lighting, parks and open space, trails, postal service
boxes and school bus stop shelters, Landscaping and fencing shall be designed in accordance
with the Town’s landsoape guidelines, Consttuction of the Private Improvements ghall not
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cormmenne nntil the Town provides written notice of approval of the Site Development Plan, with
the exception of approval of the school bus shelters, which must be approved by the school district.
Developer shall not thereafler modify the approved Site Development Plan without the wriiten
approvel of the Town, The Town's review and approval of the Site Development Plan shall not
fimit or affect Developer’s responsibility of Hability for design, construotion and installation of the
Private Inprovements, and Developerageses to save and hold the Town harmless from any claims,
fault or negligence attributable to such design, construction and installation, other than negligent
designs which are required by the Town over Developer’s written objection. In addition,
Dreveloper shall obtain all the requisite permity and Hoenses necessary for construction of the
Private Improvements. Developer shall also pay all applivable use tax due and owing to the Town.

12 Coustruction of Private Improvemenis: Upon satisfaction of the conditions set
forth i, Paxagraph 3.1, Developer shall consiract the Private Improvetnents o its own expense in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Final Plat, the Resolution, the Site Developmuent
Plan, the Town’s ordinances, resolutions and regulations and all other applicable laws and
rogulations. All landsceping services shefl be performed by a professional landseape atchitect or
engineer, Untess otherwise approved by the Town in writing, all materials used for constructing
the Private Tmprovements shall be new and both workmanship and materials shall be of good
quality.

33 Inspection: At all times during construction and installation of the Private
Tmprovements, the Town shall bave the right, but not the duty, lo inspect materialy and
wotkmanghip, at Developer’s cost. All materials and work must conform to the Site Development
Plan. Any matesial or work not conforming to the Site Development Plan shall be promptly
removed, repaired or replaced, at Developer's expense and to the satisfaction of the Town.

34 Completion of Private Tmprovements: Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Town Manager, the Private Inprovernents shall be completed no later than the date that the Public
Improvements are completed, unless such completion date i extended for reasons beyond the
reasonable control of Developer and Developer has obtained the Town Manager’s written consent
1o the extension. The Town may, in iy diserotion, allow Developer to defer completion of the
landseaping services between December 1 and March 1 of any given year provided that sufficient
surety in the form of a cash escrow deposited with the Town or an irrevocable letter of credit in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “D” in which the Town is designated as the beneficiary is
provided to the Fown,

4. Bry-Utitities

41  Uilitiess Developer shall obtain all proper conveyances and atrangements for the
ingtallatlon and provision of the Dy Utilities to serve the Development, Developer shall provide
proof of such conveyances and arrangements to the Town, which proof may be in the form of
contracts for euch services, no later than the date that the Public Improvements sre completed,
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47 Easemenis: All easements approved by the wtility companies shall be subrnitied to
the Town.

51 Iuitial Acceptance: Developer shall make written application to the Town Manager
for initial scceptance of the Subdiviston Improvements {(“Initial Acceptance”) within thitty (30)
days of the complation date of the Sibdivision lmprovements, with the exception of the
inprovements for which the Town has auwthorized an extension of time to cotuplete, The written
application shall inchide one set of reproducible “as il drawings and an affidavit executed by
Developer affirming that the Subdivision Improvements have been paid in full, certifying the final
cotstraction costs and including documentary evidence of the construction costs, If the Town

Manager requests, Developer shall provide lien walvers, ot other acceptable assurance, from all

subcontractors, sapplicrs and matetialmen who have fumished ldbor, material or serviees for the
design, construction or installation of the Subdivision Iugrovements, The affidavit and lon
waivers may be reviewed by the Tows, but fhie Town assumes no respongibility or Hability to or
for anyone regarding the veracity of the inforsaation 30 provided.

After the receipt of the wrilten application; the Town Engineer shall use reusoriable efforts
to pramptly inspect the Subdivision fmprovements. If the Subdivision Improvements are
safisfactory, Developer shall be entitled to Initial Acceptance upor receipt of the Maintenance
Cuarantee, 1f the Subdivision Improvements ara not satisfactory, the Town Engineer shall prepate
a detalled written description of &1l Subdivision Improvements which are not in compliance with

the Approved Plans, subject to any changes that have been approved by the Town and any changes

that have been tequired by the Town as.a resili of any unforeseen engineering design issues, Such
report shalt be delivered to Developer. After cutlng the defects, Developer shall make a renewed
written application to the Town for re-inspection of the Public Improverments, which written
application shall contain the items sol forth above. ‘The Town Bagineer shall {hereafler use
reasonable efforts to promptly redospect fhe Subdivision Improvements. If the Subdivision
Trmprovements ate satisfactory, Developer ghall bo entitled to Initial Acceptance wpon receipt of
the Muintenance Guaranteo.

52 Malntenance Guarantes. Prior to Initial Acceptance, Developer shall provide the
Town with & malrtenance guarantes in the form of a cash escrow deposited with (e Town or an
trevocable letter of credit in the form atiached hereto ag Txhibit “D” in whick the Town is
dosignated as the beneficlary (“Maintenance Gu arantee™), The Mainteriance Guarantee shall equal
fifieen percent (15%) of tha total cost of the Subdivision Improvements, The Maintenance
Cuarantee shall warrant and goatantee all expenses and cosis for matntenance, repairs and
replacements of the Subdivigion Improvements uotil Final Acceptance. The Maintenance
Guaranteo shall be released after Final Acceptance of all of the Subdivision Improvemens.

53 Delivery of Inttinl Acceptance. Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth above
in Paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2, the Town shall provide written wotice of Initial Acceptance of the
Suhdivision fmprovements to Developer, The Townmay issne written notice of Tnitial Acceptance
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of the Subdivision Improvements pior to-completion of certain of the less ctitical improvernents,
as determined and agread-upon by the Town In its sols disoretion, Tn which case, the Developer
may be entitled to obtain building parmits prior to-completion of all the Sybdivision Improvernents,
assuming satisfaction of the remaining terms of this Agreement and based on condittons otherwiss
st forth herein.

54 Muintenance, Repaly and Replacement. Until Final Acceptance of the
Subdivision Improvements, Developer shall pronuptly perform oll maintenance and make all
repairs and replacements of all defecis or failyres of the Subdivision Improvements at Developet’s
expense. If, within ten (10} days after Developer’s receipt of written notice from the Town
requesting such malntenance, repaiss or teplacements, Doveloper shall not have undertaken with
due-diligenice to malke the same, the Town may make such maintenance, repairs or replacements
at Doveloper's expense and shall be enttled to drasw wpon the Maintenance Guarantee, either
before undertaling to make such repaiss or at any time thereafter or the Town may charge
Dieveloper for the costs thereof. Tn. case of emergency, as detormined by the Tows, such witten
foties shall be desrned walved and the Townnay proceed as it deetns necessary at the expense of
Developer or the issuers of the Maintenance Gurarantee,

55 Final Accoptance: Two (2) yeors after the Town's Initial Acceptance of the
Subdivision Improvements, which time period may be extended in the Town’s discretion due
remedial or repair work that may be neossaty in the first two (2) years by providing written notics
to Developer, Developer shall make a wiitten request to the Town Manager for a final Inspection
of the Subdivision Improvenents (“Final Acceptance”). If the Town Engineer determines that the
Subdivision Fmprovements are free of defects in smatorials and workmanship and have been
tepaired and maintained fo the extent requited, the Town Manager shall provide a written
certification of completion and Final Acceptance. If the Town. Engineer determines that the
Subdivision Improversents are not free of dofects in materials and workmanship and bave not beon
repaired and maintained to the extont required, the Town Manager shall issue a written notice of
non-compliance specifying the defeefs, Developer shull take such action a8 i necessary 0 curs
the noncompliange and, upon curing the same, provido a new written request to the Town Manager
for u final fnspection of the Subdivision Improvements, Failure of fie Developer to make g timely
request for Final Acceptance shail not limit the Town’s rights bereunder nor shall it limit the
Town’s right to utilize or operate the Public Improvements as thé Town deems appropriate.

56  Homeowners Assoclation: Prior to Finel Accoptance and prior to the sale of fole
ot homes in the Development, Developer shall establish a homeowners association for the
Development, Developer shall provide the Town with proposed covenants, bylaws and articles of
incorporation for the hemeownets association. Upon written approvel of the covenants, bylaws
and articles of incorporation by the Town, the same shall be recorded with the appropriate County
Cletk and Recorder and the homeowners association shall thereafter be deemed to bo established,

57 Dedleation and Mulntenance of Subdivision Fmprovements: Upon ¥Final
Acoeptance of the Subdivision lmprovements: (1) the Public Inprovements shall be owned,
operated and maintained by the Town; (2) fhe Privats Improvements shall be owned, operated and




maintained, as spproptiate and ofherwise awthorized and approved by the Town, by the Developer,
fhe homeowner’s association er & metropolitain or spocial district; and (3) the Dry-Utilities shall
beowned, operated and matntained, & appropriate and otherwise anthorized, by the Developer,
the homeowner’s Bssociation, & metropolitan or speetal distoiet or the appropriate public wiility
CONIpAILY.

61 The Town and Developer shall entet into o Water.and.Sewer Service. Agroament
getting forth thelr agreement concetning water rights dedication, preliminary projections of water
and sewer demand and a commitment by the Town for water and sewer service to the
Development. The Water and Sewst Bervico Agreement, whenever executed, shall be
Incorporated into this Agreemerit and made a past harenl,

BUILDING PERMITS

71 The Town shall not isse building permits or install water meters until: (1) the
Final Plat has been recorded with the County Clerk and Recorder; (2) Developer has paid all
applicable use tax due and owiag o the Town; (3) Develeper bas received written notice.of nitial
Acceptance of the Subdivision Iinprovements; (4) meter and curb stop pass inspection; (5) sform
drainago fees required under Municipal Code Section 17-113 have been paid; (6) the parties have
entered into & Water and Sewer Service Agreement; (7) Developer has setablished a homeowners
association us set forth in Paragraph 5.6 above; and (8) all terms of this Agreement have been
faithifully kept by Developer.

12 Wotwithstanding the foregoing, fhe Towrmay, in its sole discretion, issue bullding
pecsits prior to cornpletion of certain of the less critical Subdivision Inprovements, as determined
by the Town. in its sole diseretion, on the sondition that such improvements be completed prior to
the lssuance of certiffcates of cccupancy.

73 If at any time the Town determines that Developer is not in compliance with this
Agteement, the Final Plat, the Resolution or the Approved Plans, the Town may withhold the
issuanice of bulkling permits.
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81  The operation of construction equipment outside an enclosed structure shall be
prohibited between the hours-of 8:00 p.m. and, on weskdays, the hour of 7:00 a.m. o, on weekends
and legal holidays, the Bour of 8:00 aun. The Town Manager xay, upon written application, alier
the houss of operation for good causs by providing written notics to Developer.

82 The operation of constroction equipment for the purpose of grading or constructing
either strface itnproverents or utderground utilities, sither public or private, shall be prohibited
between the hous of 8:00 pan. and 7:00 am, on weekdays and 4:00 p.an. and 8:00 a.10. on {egal
holidays and weekends, The Town Manager may, upon written application, alter the houts of
opetation for good cause by providing written notice to Developer,

83  Developer agress to congrol all weeds growing within the Developraent, Developer
further agrees to use the appropriate herbicide and undertake mowing of the property within the
Developroent,

84  Developer shall, atell times, keep the public right-of-way free from secumulation
of waste matesial, rubbish, dirt and mad caused by Devsloper’s operation. Developer shall remove
auch waste material, rabbish, dirt and mud 1o Tess than weekly and, at the completion of the work,
shall promptly remove all debris westematetials, ribish, dirt, mud, tools, construetion equipment,
machinery, building materials, trash containers, and portable toilets from the public tight-of-way.

25  When the Town Engineer provides written notice that erosion, by wind or water, (s
likely to be an issue, Developer shall install temporary or permanent arosion control info the
Devilopment at the sarliest practioable time. By way of explanation and withowt Tmitation, said
gonirol may consist of seeding of approved grasses, ferzporary dikes, gabions or other similar
devices,

8.6  Inthe event that Developer fails to perform the work specified in Paragraphs 8.3,
8.4 or 8.5 within a reasonable time period after recelving written notice from the Town, not 1o
exceed ton {10) days for the work specifled in Paragraphs 8.3 and 3.4, the Town may, in addition
to ofher remedies, fucluding thoge set forth in Paragraph 7.3, perform the work required and charge
Developer for said cost. Developer shall pay the Town for all costs incurred by the Town in the
porfurmaiice of the above said service within ten (10) days of the Town submitting an invoice for
said sarvices. If Developer does not remit the costs, in addition to other retedies, the Town may
draw on the Maintenance Guarantee.

87  Devsloper hershy ensures that Developer’s subcontractors shall cooperate with the
Town’s construetion inspectors in all manners, inchiding, but not limited to, by censing operetions
when winds are of sufficlent velocity to create blowing dust which the Town, in its disoretion,
determines is hazardovs to thepublic health and welfare.




88  Devoloper shall take 4l steps necessary to prevent its construction activities from
damaging adjacent propertiss,

9.1  Developer shall comply with the requirements coniained in the Aunexation
Agreement related to the Property, except a8 specifically amended by this Agreement.

9.7  Pxeept as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Final Plat, the Resotution or
Approved Plans, Developer shall comply with Johnstown’s municipal code, zoning ordinances,
subdivision regulations, landscape guidelines and, if operative with respect fo the Developmont,
the approved deslgn goidelinos,

03  Appropriste design standards sawst be met inchuding, but not Jimited to, the

following:

A.

B

Developer shall submit detailed elevations showing atchitectural features of
e proposed dwelling wnits, Architectural features, elevations and home
sites shall have prior approval of the Towh. Such approvals shall not be
unreasonably withheld,

All proposed multi-family areas and all other areas not planned for detached
single family units must be the subject of a Sito Development Plan to be
reviewed and approved by the Town prior to any construction being
performed,

All off-street parking structures or pads shall be provided to the rear of the
front sofback, Driveways leading to the off-sirect parking may be
constrncted within the front setback and may also be used for parking.

Tn ateas built with single family homes, no individual unit shall be built with
fhe same elevation within three (3) of itself on both sides of the street and
all wmits shall have af least & two-car parage, except the multi-family homes,

Tn areas built-with single family homes, at least twenty-five percent (25%)
of fhe facade of each dwelling unit, excluding windows, doors, and garage
doors, shall be of masonty, stone, brick, or an equivalent, All roofs shall
have thirty (3Q) year architectural style shingles. Any shingle typs or style
other than architeetural style shingles shall be submitted to the Town for
prios approval, but thrse-tab conventional asphalt shingle roofing shall not
e permitied,

All trails within the Development must be a minimom of ten (10) feet wide
and six {6} inches thick and constructed of concrete. Interior sidewalks shal
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be & minimum of five (5) feet wide, four (4) inches thick and constriocted of
sonerete.

(. To provide for emergency vebionlar acoess, no siructure shiall be located in
excous of one hundred and ffty feet (1500, excluding oul-de-sacs, from &
single point of vehicular secess unless an approved temporary second point
of vehicular access is provided.

H. Current Mundoipal Code required sefbacks mrust be met, including, but not
Hmited to, setback reqairements for oil and gas facilities.

L A thirty-foot landsoape buffer and a ten-foot meandering sidlewalk, which
shall be six inches thick, shall be construeied along any proposed artetisl
roads, The lundseape buffer shall be landscaped with deciduous frees and
evergreens along with deriduous shrub beds and bluegrass in acoordance
with the Town’s approved landscape plan. Cudb and gutter shall be
provided. fn the same Jocatlons ag the before mentioned sidewalks and
Tandsoape buffers. All local streets shall have five-foot attached sidewalks
and collector streets shall have five-foot defached sidewalks and shall be
landsoaped with trees and grass,

94 Al Final Plat and construction drawings shall be submitted in mylar, priot, and
dightal form, which ruust confortn to the Town's formeat and content requirements.

9.5  Devaloper shall take all recossary steps to prevent its constragtion activities from
harming water quality, water bodies and wetlands, All drainage and holding ponds shall be kept
freo of standing water by whatever means posgible including, but not Timited to, pumplng water
outof any holding ponds.

LIABILITY, INSURANCE AND COST REN

10,1 Indemnification: Developer hereby agrees lo indenynify and hold the Town, Town.
Officigls, its omployees, agents, representatives, insurers and gelf insurance pool barmless from
and sgainst any and &l suits, demends, actions, damages, Hability, losses, ¢lalms, fees and
expenses, including attorney’s fees, resulting or atising in any way from any breach or default of
this Agreement o any aols of omissions of Developer, its employees, agents, consultanis,
ropresentatives or suboontractors, except to (he oxtent cauged by gross negligence or wiltful
sisconduct of the Town., Developer shall promptly investigate, hendle, respond to, and provide
defense Tor and defend against any such liability, claims or demands at the sole expense of
Developer. Developer also agrees to bear all costs, expenses and attorney’s Toes related thereto
whether or not such liability, claims or demunds are groundless, false or fraudulent.
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102 Imsurence: Devoloper shall for ftself and for ifs contractors, subcontractors,
representatives and ageats engaged in the design, constrietion or instaliation of the Bubdivision
Tmprovements mainfain such lability insurance including general liability, cottractors liability,
professional liability, comprehensive sutornobila lisbility and sufficient public lability insurance
as-will protect the Town, Town Officials, its employees, agents and representatives against any
and all potential lisbility, claims, dursage, demands, logses, and expenses which may be incurred
ot asserted pursusnt to Pacageaph 10.1 above, Liability insurance shall bo in the minimum amount
of one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000.00) for infury to one person, or six hundred
thousand dollars (3600,000.00) for dnjury to two or more persobs in any single occurrence, or such
greafer amonnts a8 may be established by the Colorado Governmental Tmomity Act, §§ 24-10-
101 e seq., CRS., as may be amoended. Whenever requested by the Town Meanager, Developer
agrees 1o promplly subrmit certificates of jnsurance evidancing sufficient amounts, types and
duration of isuince and whish show the Town, Town Officials, its employees, agents and
representatives es additional insureds. Developer shall not be relieved of any liability, clatms,
demands or other obligations assumed or set forfh in this Development Agreement by reason of its
failure to prooute of maintain such insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure of maintain
instrance in sufficient amounts, durations or types. In addition to the insurance specified above,
Developer shall mairitain workets compensation fnsurance, if'so required by law, and ghall require
its conttnetors, subtontractors, tepresentatives and agents engaged in the desigu, construction or
installation of improverents to maintaln workers corapensation insurance i the amovnt requirad
by faw,

103 Drainage Liubility: Doveloper shall indemmify and hold the Town harntloss Som
any lisbility the Towm may have on account of any change in the nature, direction, quantity, ot
quality of drainage flow resliing from the Development. Tn addition, Developer shall reimburse
the Town for any and all costs, fees, and expensés, including atfotney’s foos, which the Town
incuts in acquiring any tights-of-way or easements which the Town is required to acquire or
condamn of which the Town is held to have acquired or condemned for drainage as a result of this
Development. This proviston shall survive Final Acceptance and the terinination of thig
Agretment.

104 Tox Liabiliy: Developer shall pay all outstanding taxes, encumbrances of
cbligations ou any property dedicated or conveyed to the Town prior to or at the time of such
dedication or conveyance, and shall indemnify and bold the Town harmless from any and all
encumbtances, obligations or tax Hability incurred prior to the dedication or conveyance to the
Town. Any use tax due for construction materialy shall be paid prior to construction of any
improvements on the Property.

105 Cost Reimbuisement do Town:  Developer shall reimburse the Town for
professional consultants, including, ut not Timited to enginesrs, testing companies and attorneys,
engaged by the Town to precess and complete the Developmeit,

106 Colorado Governmentnl Immunity Act: Nothing in this Agreement shall be
construed o waive, lmit or otherwise modify any governmental tonmmity that may be available
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by the law to the Tows, Town Officials, employess, contractors, ot agents, ot any other person
acting on behalf of the Town and, in particulat, governmental immunity afforded pursuait to the
Colorado Covernmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101 ef segq., C.R.3., as amended.

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

1.1 A default by Developer shall exist if Developer fails to fulfill or perfortm any
miatertal obligation contaived in this Agreement, the Final Plat, the Resotution, or the Approved
Plans, or Developer fails to comply with the Town’s ordinances, resolutions and regulations and
all other applicable laws and regulations. In the event of & default, the Town shall deliver written
notice to Developer of such defunlt and Developer shall have ten {10} days from receipt of such
nofise to cure the default, If the default ts not of a type that may be cured within such ton (10) day
petiod, Developer may provide written notice to the Towm within such perlod that 1t is actively
and diligently purwing such cure and Developer shall thereafier have a reagonable time to cure the
defalt, provided that Developer is at all times within that extended petiod actively and diligently
pursuing @ cure. In case of etmergeney, 88 determined by the Town, such written notice shall be
deemed waived and the Town may proceed as it deems necesgary at the expense of Developer or
fhe Issuers of the Maintenance or Performancs Guarantse.

112 If the default arises subsequent fo Tnitial Acceptance and the default i3 nat timely
cured, the Town may draw on the Maintenance Cuaraniee, if the default relates to the
improvement secured by the Performance Guarantes and the default is not timely cured, the Town
may draw on the Performance Guatantes. In addition, and without Himitation, if the default is not
timely cured, the Town may withhold approval of aniy or all building perwits, certificates of
ocecupancy, water meters or tap hool-ups for any area within the Development. Notwithstanding
these rights and remedies, the Town may pursue whatever additional remedies it may have against
Dieveloper or snyone, elther at law, equity or pursuant to this Agroement. The Town's reredies
ghall be cumulative. .

113 Should Devoloper dufault in any obligation under this Agreement, the Town may,
in its digoretion, complate such Subdivision Jmprovements at Developer’s expense. The Town
shall estimate the cost of such Improvements and give notice to Developer to pay such cost
estimate. The Town shell nse such payment for said improvements and refund any money
collssted in excess of the actual cost of said lmprovements. Should payment ot bo tade within
thirty (30) days of such notice, the Town may assess the amount of the cost estimate, plus ten
percent (10%) to defray the cost of collection as provided by state law, to the Property and file &
tien againgt the Property, such lien to have priority over all Tens except goneral taxes and prior
special assessments and to be placed upon the tax tist for the cureent year fo be collected in the
anme manner a8 taxes are coflocted. The Town may file such lien at any time after gaid thirty (30)
days while Developer is in default of this Agreement.

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
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12,1 The Additional Terms, Conditions or Provisions relating to this Development are
get forth in Exhibit “B-3,” which is attached hereto, incorporated herein by this reference, and
made a part of this Agreement.

ELL

131 No Waiver: Delays in enforcement or the waivet of any one or more breaches of
this Agreement by the Town shall not constitute o waivet of any of the remaining letms or
oblgations,

132 Severability. If any provisions or parts of this Agreement are judged to be
unenforosable or invalid, to the extent practicable, such judgment shall hot affect, impair of
invalidate the remaining parts of this Agreement, the intention being that the various parts and
provisions hereof are-severable,

133 Recovding of Agreement. A Notice of this Agreement substantially in the form as
shown onn Exhibit “E” is to be recorded with the approved Final Plat and shall be a covenant
pofining with and agatnst ail the Praperty, ptoperty rights and fmproverments contained within the

Devedlopment desoribed in Bxhibit “A” inovder to put progpective owners, purchasers, SUCCESSOrs,

assigns, and others acquiring any interest in the property on notice as to the terms and obligations
terein, No lots, tracts or parcels may be geparately conveyed prior to rocording such Notice and
the Final Plat.

13.4  Binding Effect. Unless otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shail be binding
upon Developer’s Tieirs, SUC0SISOrs, assigns, transferces and any other parson or entily acquiring
of purchasing any interest in any of the Property deseribed in the attached Exhibit #A,” with the
exception of a bons, fide restdential home buyer ofa completed owner-occupied home.

135 Trausfer ov Assigmments: In the event of a sale or transfer of any portion of the
Developrent, except 1o a bona fide residential hote buyer of a completed owner-occupied home,
the seller or transferor and the purchaser or transferee shall be jotntly and severally Hable for the
performance of sach of the obligations contained in this Agresment unless, prior to the transfer ot
the sale, a wiltten agreement satisfactory to the Tovwn delineating and allocating the various rights
and obligations for the Subdivision Improvernents has been approved and executed by the Town
Council,

13,6 Tile and duthority: Developer expressly watrants and represonts to the Town that
itis the record owner of the Development and frther tepresents and warrants that the undersigned
has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement. Developer understandy that the Town
ig rolying on the representations and wactantics contained hetein in approving in entering info this
Agreement,

13 Natice: All notices, consents, applications or other instruments provided for under
this Apreement shall be degmed propealy given and recetved: (1) when personally delivered and
recetved, whett sent by messenget service, or when forwarded by facshnlle or emuil-delivery, but
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only tpon confirmation of receipt of such facyimile or email; (2) on the next day after deposit for
delivery with a netienally-recognized overnight courier service; or (3) three business days after
deposit tu the United States mail, by certified mail with return reosipt requested, postage prepeid
and acidressed as Tollows:

TO DEVELOPER: | TO TOWN:
Lomas-Sometset Maadows TOWN-OF JORNSTOWN
13848 Weddington Street Attention: TOWN MANAGER
Sherman Onks, CA 51401 450 8o, Parish
Attention: Todd Kufin P, 0. Box 609

‘ Johustown, CO 80334
Kurtin Properties, Ine. & California Facstmile: (970) 587-0141
Corporatlon Bail: reello@townofjohnstown,com
Attre Jon Kurtin Avt 8, Rocklin, Esq.

Taw Qffive of Avl 8. Rocklin, LLC
19 Old Town Square, Suite 238

Fort Colling, CO 80528

Facsimile: {970y 797-1806

Bmail: avi@rocklinlaw.com

13,8 Costs and Attorney Fees. 1f the Developer breaches this Agreement, the Developer
shall pay the Town's reasonable costs and expenses, inchuding attorney’s fees, mourred in the
anforeemant of the terms, conditions and obligations of this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be
construed to prevent o interfere with the Town’s rights and remedies specified elsewhere Jn the
Agreement,

13,9  Vested Right. The Final Plat shall have yested rights pursuant to §§ 24-68-101, e
seq., CR.S. for a period of three (3) years from the date of this Agreement,

13.10 Warranty of Developers Developer warrants that the Subdivision Improvements
shall be instatled in & good and workmantike mammet and in compliance with ftie Approved Plans,
this Agreement, the Pinal Plat, the Resolution, the Towns ordinances, resobutions and regulations
and a1l other applicable faws and regulations and shall be substantially free of any defeots in
materials and workmanship.

13.11 Governing Luw ond Venue, This Agreement and {he interprotation thereof shall
be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado and Musicipal Code of the Town of Johnstown.
Venue for any clajm, proceeding or action arising out of this Agroement shall be in Larimer or
Weld County, Colorado. '

13,12 No Presumption. Bach party acknowledges that it has oblained, or has had the
opportunity to obtain, the advice of legal cougsel of fts own chooging in connection with the
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negotiation snd exeoution of this Agreement and with respect to all matters set forth herein. Inthe
event of any digpute, disagreement ot controversy arising from this Agreement, the parties shall
be considered joint authors and no provision shall be interpreted against any party because of
arfhorship. . _

13,13 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the -entire agreement and
understanding betwern the perties and supersedes all prior agreements or understandings. Aty
amendment to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by the parties.

13,14 Compllance with the Eow, Doveloper shall comply with all federal, state and local
taws and regulations in the performatics of the obligetions under this Agreement.

13,15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. No peson or entity, other than a party to. this
Agreement, shali have any right of action nnder this Agreement including, but not lirpited to,
lenders, lot or home buyers and materialmen, leborers ot others providing work, services or
materialy for the Subdivision Mxprovements,

13,16 Forve Majeurs, Neither party shall be lable for u faiture to perform hetennder if
snoh failure is the result. of force majeure, which shall mean causes beyond the reasoriable control
of aparty such as acts of God, Jabor strikes, war, terrorism, fire or action or Inaction of government
authorities.

13,17 Headings. The paragraph headingy herein are for the convenience and reference
of the partiss and are not intended to define or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOW, and agresing to be fully bound by the terms of this

Agreement, the pattics have set their hands below on this _ lﬁé.a}r of hon<. P
20 15"
OWNER ATTEST:

Tomag-Somerset Meadpws, LLC

Seeretary/Member B Date

(SEAL)

?ff’ﬂf e atttches! Aot ument




GALSFBRHIA JURA’?’ W!TH AFWANT S?AYEMENT GOVERNMENT CDB& § 8292

¥ See Attached Document (Notary to crogs out ines 1-8 below)
[T Bee Statement Balow (Lines 1-6 to be completed only by dosument signerfs], not Notary)

P

Signature of Becument Signer No, 1 Sfgrature of Documert Signer No. 2 (if any)

A notary pubtic or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual whe signied the
docurnent to which this sertificate is attached, and not the truthfulhess, acouracy, or validity of that document.

State of California é} [lf Subscribed and sworn to {(or affirmed) before me
County of g e. - P
aunty o (?}é ah this / ? day of %ﬂ’éﬁ . 20 /5 ,
by Date Month Year
(1) 7«72?/9/ %ﬁ’r?{’ﬁ
fand (2) T )
Namedfe) of Signenfs)

proved 1o me on tha basis of salisfactory evidence
io be the personi{sh who appeared before me.

T R -
ot . O

Seal
Place Nutary Seal Above

OPTIONAL

Though this section is optional, completing this information can deter altergtion of the document or
fraudident reatiachment of this form to an unimended document.

Description of Attached Brocument
Titls or Type of Document: Document Date:
Szgner{ ) Other Than Named Above:

Number of Pages:

©2014 National Notary Assoc at ON * WWW, Nafmna Natary org 1 8(}0 U% NOTARY( ~800 876 BB??) ferm #5910
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STATE OF COLORADO ¥
} 58
COUNTY OF j

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 520 , by

WITNESS tay hand end official seal.

My commiinsion sxpires.

Notary Public

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO
A Municipal Corpotation

By

Murk Romanowski, Mayor

ATTEST:

By

Diana Seele, Town Clerk
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EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
{Development)




EXHIBIT A

THOMPSON CROSSING Il, FILING NO. 1

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
(PER LAND TITLE GUARANTEE COMPANY ORDER NC. FCC25119022)

THE N 1/2 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH
P.M., COUNTY OF LARIMER, STATE OF COLORADC EXCEPT THOSE PARCELS DESCRIBED IN
DEEDS RECORDED FEBRUARY 24, 1902 IN BOOK 146 AT PAGE 263 AND OCTOBER 8, 1970 IN
BOOK 1443 AT PAGE 834 AND MAY 22, 1987 AT RECEPTION NO. 87029605.

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS A GROSS AREA OF 3,321,349 SQUARE FEET, 76.248 ACRES, MORE OR
LESS. '




EXHIBIT B-1
PLAT OR PLAN

(SEE ATTACHED)
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EXHIBIT B-2
(RESOLUTION APPROVING PLAT OR PLAN)

(SEE ATTACHED)




TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-06

APPROVING FINAL PLAT FOR THOMPSON CROSSING
1, FILING NO. 1, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY
76+ ACRES, LOCATED IN THE NORTH ONE-HALF OF
THE SOUTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 14,
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6™ P.M.,
COUNTY OF LARIMER, STATE OF COLORADO.

WHEREAS, an application has been made to the Town of Johnstown for approval of a
Final Plat for subdivision of certain lands located in the North one-half of the Southeast one-
quarter of Section 14, Township 5 North, Range 68 West of the 6% P.M., County of Larimer,
State of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, on December 10, 2014, the Planning Commission held a hearing and
reviewed the request and recommended that the Town Council approve the Final Plat with
certain conditions; and -

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2015, the Town Council held a hearing concerning the Final
Plat and after considering the Planning Commission’s recommendations, reviewing the file, and
conducting a hearing, finds as follows with regard to the Final Plat:

1. The data requirements, design standards, and required improvements shown meet
the requirements of the Johnstown Municipal Code Subdivision Regulations.

2. The Final Plat, as submitted, conforms substantially with the Preliminary Plat as
approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO,

Section 1. Final Plat Approval. The Final Plat of Thompson Crossing TI, Filing No. 1,
described as in the North one-half of the Southeast one-quarter of Section 14, Township 5 North,
Range 68 West of the 6™ P.M., County of Larimer, State of Colorado, as more specifically
described on the attached “Exhibit A,” is hereby approved.

Section 2. Conditions, Prior to the issuance of any building permits, all conditions
shown in the attached “Exhibit B” must be met.




Section 3. Recording. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to obtain the appropriate
signatures for the Final Plat and once the conditions are satisfied regarding the form of the Final
Plat, to have it properly recorded at the office of the Weld County Clerk and Recordet.

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

L

Mark Romanowski, Mayor




EXHIBIT B-3

ADDITIONAL TERMS, CONDITIONS OR PROVISIONS
(Thompson Crossing I1, Filing No. 1)

. Developer agrees to improve High Plains Blvd. (LCR 3) to an Interim Arteriai

section along the Property frontage, and a special Rural Section exiending to
Ronald Reagan Blvd., and along the two outparcels {Coonrad and Comer)
adjoining the subd|v1810n

. As part of High Plains Blvd. improvements noted in 1. Above, Developer shall

construct the Railroad Crossing per PUC and GWRR approvals, including final
acceptance upon completion.

. Developer has determined and the Town Engineer has confirmed an estimated

cost of widening the Big Thompson River Bridge to accommodate two lanes of
traffic plus shoulders to be $450,000. The developer agrees to pay a proportional
share of this estimated cost based upon calculated traffic impact from this filing
and subsequent filings in the amount of $135.00 per dwelling unit, due at time of
building permit.

. Decorative street lighting and signage shall be maintained by the Owners

Association and not the Town.

. Development is subject to Johnstown Review Committee (JRC) approval of the

Final Site Development Plan per the Thompson Crossing Design Guidelines.

. Developer agrees to install a ‘Speed Table' on Tarragon Drive in a location and

design approved by Town staff, approximately 990’ west of this filing.

. Developer agrees to purchase of water taps from the Town.

. Developer will install the private neighbarhood park. Upon completion of the park

improvements, acceptance by the Town and Town approval of certified as-built
costs, Town agrees to reimburse Developer for the cost of the park
improvements from the Neighborhood Park Development Fee collected with
each dwelling unit permit in Thompscn Crossing Il. The amount of
reimbursement shall not exceed the approved park cost.

. Developer may request reimbursement for the cost of extending completed and

accepted roadway improvements on High Plains Blvd. (LCR 3) which adjoin
other properties. Additionally, Developer may request reimbursement from
benefitting properties for oversizing completed and accepted water and sanitary
sewer. Reimbursements shall be subject to Town Council approval of a
Reimbursement Agreement, with notice to benefitting properties and other
requirements of the Johnstown Municipal Code.
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EXHIBIT C

SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
(ATTACHED)




ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 1

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY UNIT PRICE COoST
Square
1 |Aggregate Base Course (Class 6) (8.5" depth) Yard 16,083 6.75 108,560.25
Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement (Gr SX){(SP75, PG Square
2 |64-22) 2.0" depth) Yard 16,083 8.50 136,705.50
Hot Mix Asphalt Favement {Gr 8){SP75, PG €4-| Square
3 (22} (2.0" depth) Yard 16,083 8.50 136,705.50
4 |Town of Johnstown Crosspans (6-Foof) Each 2 1,350.00 2,7CC.00
Linear
5 |18" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class I} Foot 447 34.00 15,1€8.00
- Linear
6 |24" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class I} Foot 315 45.00 14,175.00
Linear
7 130" Reinforced Concrete Pipe {Class III) Foot 851 58.00 49,358.00
tinear
8 |42" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class ) Foot 970 115.00 111,550.00
Linear
9 (48" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class 1) Foot 1438 116.00 17,168.00
Linear
10 |54" Reinforced Concrate Pipe (Class 1) Foot 27 117.00 3,159.00
Linear
11 186" Reinforced Concrete Pipe. (Class !l Foot 350 200.00 70,000.00
12 |4' Dia. Storm Sewer Manhole Each 4 2,700.00 10,800.00
13 |6' Dia. Storm Sewer Manhele Each 10 4,900.00 49,000.00
14 |8' Dia. Storm Sewer Manhole Each 4 9,500.00 38,000.00
15 |24" RCP Flared End Sectian Each 1 750.00 750.00
16 |66" RCP Flared End Sactien Each 1 900.00 900.00
Cubic
17 | Type H Rip Rap w/ Bedding Yard 35 80.00 2,800.00
Cubic
18 | Type L Rip Rap w/ Bedding Yard 15 81.00 1,215.00
19 |Area Inlet Each 3 4,000.00 12,000.00
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ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 1

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY|  UNIT PRICE €OST
20 |Inlet, Type R (5 Each 2 $ 4,500.00 9,000.00
21 |Inlet, Type R (107) Each 10 $ 6,000.00 80,000.00
22 |Inlet, Type R (15 Each 2 $ 7,750.00 15,500.00
23 |Pond Qutlet Structura Each 1 $ 11,000.00 11,000.00
Square
24 |Concrete Sidewalk (68") Yard 896 | $ 12.50 11,200.00
25 |Concrete Curb (Pedestrian) Ramp Each 18 $ 1,450.00 26,100.00
Linear
26 [Curb and Gutter, Mountable Foot 6652 | 13.50 89,802.00
Linear
27 |Curb and Gutter, Vertical Foot 2827 | § 12.50 35,337.50
28 |Speed Limit Signs Each 8 $ 575.00 4,600.00
29 iStop Signs Each 10 5 450.00 4,500.00
30 |Strest Name Signs Each 26 $ 450.00 11,700.00
8" Sanitary SDR 35 PVC Pipe, (Complete in Linear
31 |place) Foot 6,176 | $ 35.00 216,160.00
32 |4' Dia. Sanitary Sewer Manhole Each 35 $ 3,200.00 112,000.00
33 |Fire Hydrant Assembly with 6" Gate Valve Each 7 $ 5,700.00 39,900.00
Linear
34 |8" Water C900 PVC P|PE {Complete in Place) Foot 4525 | $ 22.00 99,550.00
35 |8" Gale Valve Each 32 $ 1,600.00 51,200.00
36 [6"%B" Tee Each 7 $ 485,00 3,395.00
37 [8"x8" Tee Each 12 $ 485.00 5,820,00
38 |Water Main Bends Each 34 $ 340,00 11,560.00




ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 1

lLEoN.1 DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY UNIT PRICE €OST

39 |Sanitary Services Each 88 1,000.00 88,000.0C
40 |Water Services Each 62 1,650.00 102,300.00
41 [Connect to existing Sanltary Each 1 1,600.00 | 1,660.00
42 {Water Main Plug Each 5 200.00 1,000.00

1,790,968.75
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ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 2

ITEM
NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY UNIT PRICE COST

Square

1 (Aggregate Base Course (Class 6) {8.5" depth) Yard 7,133 8.75 48,147.75
Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement (Gr SX)(SP75, PG Square

2 |64-22) 2.0" depth) Yard 7,133 8.50 60,630.50
Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement (Gr S}(SP75, PG 64-| Square

3 |22)(2.0" depth) Yard 7,133 8.50 60,630.50

4 |Town of Johnstown Crosspans (6-Foot) Each 1 1,350.00 1,350.00
Linear

5 [18" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class |1l Foot 38 34.00 1,292.00
Linear

8 |24" Reinforced Cencrete Pipe (Class (1} Foot 316 45.00 14,220.00
Linear

7 [38" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class ill) Foot 121 80.00 9,680.00
Linear

8 42" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class [I1) Foct 80 115.00 9,200.00

9 |4' Dia. Storm Sewer Manhole Each 2 2,700.00 5,400.00

10 |8' Dia. Storm Sewer Manhole Each 3 9,500.00 28,500.00

11 |Inlet, Type R (10") Each 1 6,000.00 6,000.00

12 |Inlet, Type R (15") Each 1 7,750.00 7,750.00
Square

13 |Concrete Sidewalk (6") Yard 2,181 12.50 27,012.50

14 |Concrete Curb (Pedestrian) Ramp Each 2 1,450.00 2,900.00
Linear

15 1Curb and Guiter, Mountable Foot 3,889 13.50 52,501.80
8" Sanitary SDR 35 PVC Pipe, (Completa in Linear

16 |place) Foot 886 35.00 31,010.00

17 |4' Dia. Santtary Sewer Manhole Each 4 3,200.00 12,800.00

18 {Fire Hydrant Assembly with 6" Gate Valve Fach 3 5,700.00 17,100.00
Linear

19 |8" Water C900 PVC PIPE (Complete in Place) Foot 1,963 22,00 42,966.00




ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 2

ILEO]\TI DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY!  UNITPRICE COST

20 |8" Gate Valve Each 10 1,600.00 16,000.00
21 |6"%8" Tee Each 3 486.00 1,455.00
22 |8"x8" Tee Each 2 485.00 970.00
23 |Water Main Bends Each 11 340,00 3,740.00
24 |Sanitary Services Each 18 1,000.00 18,000.0C
25 |Water Services Each 44 1,650.00 72,600.00
26 |Connect to existing Sanitary Each 1 1,600.00 1,600.00
27 |Water Main Plug Each 1 200.00 200.00

553,455.75




ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 3

ITEM
NO. CESCRIPTION UNITS - | QUANTITY UNIT PRICE COST
Square
1 |Aggregate Base Course (Class 6) (8.5" depth) Yard | 10,210 | § 6.75] 68,917.50
Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement {Gr SX)}SP75, PG Square
2 |64-22) 2.0" depth) Yard 10,210 | § 8.50 86,785.00
Hot Mix Asphalt Pavement (Gr S}(8P75, PG 64-| Square
3 122) (2.0" depth) Yard 10,210 | $ 8.50 86,785.C0
: Linear
4 |18" Reinforced Concrate Pipe (Class 1) Foct 1253 | § 34.00 42,602.00
Linear
5 |24" Reinforced Concrete Pipe (Class 1I{) Foot 31 3 45.00 1,395.00
6 |4 Dia. Storm Sewer Manhoie Each 2 $ 2,700.00 5,400.00
7 |Area Inlet Each 1 % 4,000.00 4,000.00
8 [Inlet, Type R (59 Each 1 3 4,500.00 4,500.00
9 |Inlet, Type R (10") Fach | 2 |$ 600000 12,000.00
10 |Inlet, Type R (1579 Each 1 3 7,750.00 7,750.00
Square
11 |Concrete Sidewalk (6™) Yard -{ 2,165 | § 12.50 27,062.50
Linear
12 |Curb and Gutter, Mountable Foot 3,897 | 13.50 52,808.50
Linear
13 |Curb and Guiter, Vertical Foot 722 | $ 12.50 9,025.00
8" Sanitary SDR 35 PVC Pipe, (Compleia in Linear '
17 |place} Foot 2,216 | § 35.00 77,560.00
18 |4' Dia. Sanitary Sewer Manhole Each 11 $ 3,200.00 35,200,00
19 {Fire Hydrant Assembly with 8" Gate Valve Each 5 B 5,700.00 28,500.00
Linear
20 |8" Water C800 PVC PIPE (Complete in Place) Foot 1,898 | § 22,00 41,758.00
Linear
21 |168" Water C90C PVC PIPE (Comglete in Place} Foot 715 | § 45.00 32,175.00
22 (16" Gate Valve Each 2 $ 1,598.00 3,198.00




ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
THOMPSON CROSSING- PHASE 3

ITEM _ :

‘NO. DESCRIPTION UNITS | QUANTITY|  UNIT PRICE cosT
| 23 |8" Gate Valve Each 4 $ 1,.6800.00| $ 6,400.00
24 16"x8" Tee Each 5 $ 485.00| § 2,425.00
25 |8"x8" Tee Each 12 $ 435.00| $ 5,820.00
26 |Water Main Bends . Each 8 $ 340.00] $ 2,720.00
I 27 |Sanitary Services Each 61 $ 1,000.00| $ 61,000.00

28 |Water Services Each 61 | $ 1,650.00( §  100,650.00
! 29 |Connect to existing Sanitary Each 3 $ 1,600.00| $ 4,800.00

$ 811,035.50
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EXHIBIT D

FORM--IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT

NAME OF ISSUING BANK
ADDRESS OF ISSUING BANK

Town of Johnstown
450 So. Parish

P. O. Box 609

Johnstown, CO 80534

ATTENTION: TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN ATTORNEY AND TOWN MANAGER

We hereby establish, at the request and for the account of this Irrevocable Letter of Credit in favor
of the Town of Johnstown in the amount of § . The purpose of this
Letter of Credit is to secure performance of a Development Agreement for ,
dated this day of , 20 , between the Town of Johnstown and

You are hereby authorized to draw on sight by drafts or written demands up to the aggregate
amount of § . The sole condition for payment of any demand made or draft
drawn against this Irrevocable Letter of Credit is that the Town’s demand or draft be accompanied
by a letter, on the Town’s stationery, signed by the Town Manager to the effect that “the Town of
Johnstown has declared a default under the Development Agreement.”

Partial and multiple drawings are permitted hereunder.

We hereby agree with the Town of Johnstown and its drawers, endorsers, and bona fide holders of
demands made or drafts negotiated under this Letter of Credit that the same shall be duly honored
upon presentation and delivery of the documents as specified above.

This Irrevocable Letter of Credit is not transferable.

This Letter of Credit shall be for a twelve (12) month term from the date of execution hereof, Ttis
a condition of this Letter of Credit that it shall be automatically renewed, without amendment, for
additional periods of one year each from the present or any future expiration date, unless, at least
sixty (60) calendar days prior to the effective expiration date, the Town Manager notifies you in
writing delivered by certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, to your address set forth above
that the Town of Johnstown elects not to renew this Letter of Credit for any further additional
period. Upon your receipt of our written notification of impending expiration, you may draw the
unused balance of this [rrevocable Credit upon your written demand or your sight draft.
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With the exception of C.R.S. §4-5-108(b) concerning the period of time in which to honor or reject
a draft, demand or credit, this Letter of Credit shall be governed and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Colorado. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the Colorado
Uniform Commercial Code and the provisions hereof, the provisions hereof shall control.

Signed this day of , 20
Issuing Bank:
By:
Officer’s Title:
Address:
STATE OF )
} 8s.

COUNTY OF )}

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of ,
20 , by as the of

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires:

Notary Public




EXHIBIT E

NOTICE

Please take notice that on the  day of , 20, the Town Council
of the Town of Johnstown approved the final plat for the development known as ,
which development was submitted and processed in accordance with the Town of Johnstown’s
Municipal Code. In conjunction therewith, the Town Council also approved a Development
Agreement dated , 20, between the Town Johnstown and the Developer,
pursuant to and under which certain rights and obligations of the Developer will pass on to
subsequent owners, heirs, assigns and transferees of the below-described property. The
Development Agreement is on file and may be reviewed in the office of the Town Clerk of the
Town of Johnstown. The subject property for which such Development Agreement applies is
described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHED

DATED this day of , 20

Town Clerk

Town Manager
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TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION

AGENDA DATE: July 6, 2015

ITEM NUMBER: 9B

SUBJECT: Presentation of 2014 Annual Audit Report
ACTION PROPOSED: Accept 2014 Annual Audit Report
PRESENTED BY: Mr. Raymond E. Derr, P.C. (CPA)

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS) 29-1-603 (Colorado Local
Government Audit Law, Audits Required) provides in part for the following:

¢ The governing body of each local government in the state shall cause to be made an annual
audit of the financial statements of the local government for each fiscal year.

®  Suchaudit shall be made as of the end of the fiscal year of the local government, or, at the
option of the governing body, audits may be made at more frequent intervals.

¢ An auditor shall conduct audits of each local government in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards.

» The expenses of audits required by this part six (6) shall be paid by the local government for
which the audit is made. It is the duty of the governing body of the local government to
make provision for payment of said expenses.

¢ The entities shall annually have an audit made by a certified public accountant and shall file
a copy of the audit report made pursuant to such audit with the state auditor no later than
thirty days after the report is received by such entity.

Additionally, Section 4-22 (Annual Audit) of the Johnstown Municipal Code requires that an annual
audit be conducted regarding the financial affairs and transactions of the Town in accordance with the
requirements of state law. The attached audit report is for the year ending December 31, 2014.

Note: Mr. Raymond Derr, CPA (Town Auditor) will be in attendance to present the Town's 2014
Annual Audit Report.

LEGAL: ADVICE: N/A

FINANCIAL ADVICE: According to the Town Treasurer, sufficient funds have been budgeted for the
audit.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept annual audit report for the year ending December 31, 2014.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
For Acceptance: I move fo accept the annuval audit report for the year ending December 31, 2014,

Reviewed:

n Manager
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RAYMOND E. DERR, CPA, P.C.

PSKOV SPG Financial Group

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Town Council
Town of Johnstown, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each ma’jor
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town cof
Johnatown, Colorado, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the Town of Johnstown,
Colorado, as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementaticn, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards gensrally accepted in the United States of America.

An audlt involves performing procedures to obtain avdit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the
assesgment of the risks of meterial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal contrcl relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate Lo provide a basis for our audit opinions.

629 Terry Street « Longmont, CO 80501 .
0: 303.682.7459 » £: 303.682.9303 » :720.289.5906 « e:rederrcpa@aol.com




Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require that the management’s discussion and analysis and
required supplemental information are not required parts of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of dinquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the supplementary information.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence tc express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the Town of Johnstown,
Colorado’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and other schedules and local
highway finance report, listed in the Table of Contents as
supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and cothexr records used
to prepars the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basgic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additlonal procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United 8tates of America. In our opinion, this
information is falrly stated, in 211 material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

RAYMOND E. DERR, P.C.
Certified Public Rccountant
Longmont, Cclorado

May 19, 2015



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado, we offer readexs of the
Town’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the Town of Johnstown, Colorade, for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2014. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional informaticn
provided in the financlal statements.

Financial Highlights
The Town's assets exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2014, by
$102,298,84L (net assets).

The Town's total net assets increased by $12,632,051 in 2014.

bt December 31, 2014, the restricted fund balance for the general fund was
324,256,105 or approximately 4.44 times total general fund expenditures.

The Town’s total debt decreased by $1,866,746 during the 2014 fiscal year.
The key factor for this decrease was the payment of debt and no additional
borrowings during 2014.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an intreduction to
the Town of Johnstown’s basic financial statements, The Town’s basic
statements ares comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financizl statements, and 3) notes to the filnancial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial
statements are designed tec provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town’s finances in a manner simllar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents Information on all the Town’s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two being reported as net
assets. Over time, the increases or decreases in net assets may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is
improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activitles presents information showing how the Town of
Johngtown’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. ALL
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some

items will only result in cash flows in future periocds (e.g. uncellected
taxes and earned but unused vacation time).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of
the Town of Johnstown that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functlons
that are intended to reccver all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities}. The governmental
activities of the Town of Jchnstown include general government, public
safety, public works, community development, culture, and parks and
recreation. The business—-type activities of the Town of Johnstown includs
water, wastewater, drainage and library.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that
ig used to maintain control over resocurces that have been segregated for'
specific activities or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements., All
of the Town’s funds can be divided into two categories: governmental and
proprietary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially
the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and cutflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Financial
information based on spendable resources is useful in evaluatlng the Town's
short-term flnan01ng requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the
government-wide financial statements, it may be useful teo compare the
information presented for govermmental funds with similar Iinformaticn
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Readers may then bketter understand the long-term impact ocf
the Town’s short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental £fund
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconeliliation to
facilitate this c¢omparison betwesn governmental funds and governmental
activities.
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The Town maintzins ten individual govermmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental balance sheet and in the
governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund and other major funds. The non-major funds
are combined in the Other Governmental Funds inte a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data Zfor each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements and
individual fund statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds. The Town of Johnstown maintains one type of proprietary
fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functioms presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water, wastewater, drainags
and library operations, all of which are considered to be major funds of
the Town of Johnstown.

Notes to Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information
that 1s essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. '

REPORTING THE TOWN AS A WHOLE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSTS

As noted previcusly, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator
of the Town's financial position. For the year ending December 31, 2014,
the Town’s combined assets exceeded liabilities by $102,298,841.

Cash of $74,010,968 is one the Town’s largest portion of total assets (72.3
percent) and may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors.

The other largest portion of the Town of Johnstown's net assets {(27.5
percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
nachinery, and equipment), lsss any related debt used to acquire those
assets that are still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available
for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations
to citizens and creditors. Our analysis below focuses on the net assets
of the Town’s governmental and business-type activities.
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Cash
Capital Assets
Other Assets

Total Assets

Long-Term Lisbilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

NET ASSETS

2As of December 31,

Governmental
Activities
$51,130,507
9,110,971
3,794,862

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt

Restricted

Total Net Assets

Cash
Capital Assets
Other Assets

Total Assets

Long-Term Liabilitiles

Other Liabllities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

9,110,971
51,364,992

560,475,963

2014

Business-Type

Activities

522,880,461
18,991, 646
302,086

18, 991, 646
22,831,232

%41,822,878

Total

% 74,010,568
28,102,617
4,096,948

28,102,617
74,196,224

102,298,841

NET ASSETS

As of December 31,

Governmental
Activities

£$43,483,392
9,324,352
3,396,587

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt

Restricted

Total Net Assets

9,324,352
43,200,267

§52,524,619

2013

Business-Type

Activities

520,945,882
17,985,478
309,536

1,445,000
653,726

16,577,479
20,564,692

$37,142,171

Total

564,429,274
27,309,831
3,706,123

1,445,000
4,333,438

25,901,831
63,764,959

589,666,790
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Net Assets December 31,

CHANGE. IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating Grants
and Contributions

Capital Grants & Contributions
Genecral Revenues:

Property Taxes

Sales and Use Taxes
Other Taxes/Licenses
Earnings on Investments

Total Revenues

Expenses:

General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Health and Welfare

culture and Recreation
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Water

Wastewater

brainage

Library

Total Expenses

Excess Before Transfers
Transfers

Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets January 1, 2014

2014

Governmental
Activities

§ 4,189,906

3,431,025
6,006,200
671,177
224,813

659,305
1,798,463
2,533,013

113, 901
1,025,715

8,402,724
451, 380)

7,951,344

52,524,619

560,475,963

Business-Type
Activities

5 4,749,998

2,877,043

105,136

133
1,507,894
1,286,702

239,100
469,021

4,229,327
451, 380

4,680,707

37,142,171

$41,822,878

8,949,504

2,877,043

3,431,025
6,006,200
871,177
325,948

659,305
1,788,463
2,533,013

113,901
1,025,715

133
1,507,854
1,286,702

239,100

469,021

12,632,051

89,666,790




CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2013

Governmental Business-Type
Activities BActivities Total
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services S 4,220,312 S 4,418,780 $ 8,639,092
Operating Grants
and Contributions
Capital Grants & Contributicns 2,751,400 2,751,400
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 3,061,819 3,061,818
Sales and Use Taxes 5,014,048 5,014,048
Other Taxas/Licenses 571,785 571,785
Earnings on Investments 49,214 18,600 67,814
Total Revenues 12,917,178 7,188,780 20,105,958
Expenses:
General Government 602,044 602,044
Public Safety 1,751,717 ) 1,751,717
Public Works 2,194,401 2,194,401
Health and Welfars 95,733 95,733
Culture and Recreaticon 557,518 557,518
Interest on Leng-Term Debt 111,851 111,851
Watexr 1,362,852 1,362,852
Wastewater 1,334,656 1,334,656
Drainage 156,007 156,007
Library 481,342 481, 342
Total Expenses 5,201,413 3,446,708 8,648,121
Excess Before Transfers 7,715,765 3,742,072 11,457,837
Transfers { 432, 386) 432,386
Increase in Net Assgets 7,283,379 4,174,458 11,457,837
Net Assets January 1, 2013 45,241,240 32,967,713 78,208, 953

Net Assets December 31, 2013 552,524,619 $37,142,171 589,666,790

Government-wide activities. The Town of Johnstown continues to experience
growth of new construction of homes and commercial buildings. The Town
charges tap fees for water and wastewater services, impact fees and building
permits to builders for development. These charges account for most of the
$12,632,051 and §11,457,837 increase in net assets for the year ending
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

Ls explained earlier, the Town of Johnstown uses fund accounting te ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal reguirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town of Johnstown's governmental funds
ig to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable rescurces. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure ¢f the Town’s net resources available for spending at

the end of the fiscal year.

At December 31, 2014, the Town’s governmental funds reported -a combined
ending fund balance of 551,364,992, an increase of $8,164,725, The General
Fund is the major operating fund of the Town. At the end of the fiscal year
2014, the fund balance increased by 43,927,666 from 520,328,439 to

524,256,105,

The other two major governmental funds’ fund balance at December 31, 2014,
were $10,1%2,698 for the Impact Fee Fund and 12,677,976 for the Use Tax
Capital Improvement Fund. All fund balances of the Town's governmental
funds are considered to be adequate levels and available for spending at the

Town’s discretion.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Town budgeted for General Fund expenditures of 56,466,800 for the year
ended December 31, 2014. Actual expenditures were 55,467,477,

The General Fund’s 2014 actual revenues of 49,395,143 exceed the budgeted
revenues of $6,523,400 by $2,871,743.

CAPITAL ASSEZT AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets, The Town of Johnstown’s investment in capital assets for
its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2014,
amounts teo $28,102,167 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, water rights, buildings and system
improvements, machinery and equipment, and park facilities. The Town of
Johnstown's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal vear
increased by $1,649,708 for governmental and business-type activities,

Long-Term Debt. At December 31, 2014, the Town of Johnstown had no long-
term debt outstanding.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The annual budget provides for the efficient, effective and economical use
of the Town's financial resources while assuring established goals are
successfully accomplished in a timely fashion. The 2015 budget continues
to reflect the Town's sustained commitment to financial responsibility,
offective management of the Town’s resources, and the continuation of
comprehensive and cost efficlent service delivery to the ciltizens of

Johnstown.

The 2015 budget was approved by the Town Council on December 1, 2014. A
total of 814,750,500 was allocated for all funds, which represents
approximately an fifteen pesrcent (15%) decrease over the 2014 budget.

A strong emphasis continues to be placed upon the maintenance and upgrade of
the Town’s buildings and infrastructurs.

The focus for 2015 is implementing Council’s priority projects and making a
commitment to continue serving our citizen’s with the levels of gservice

necessary to making noticeable enhancements to the guality of 1life in

Johnstown.
CONTACTING THE TOWN’'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town
of Johnstown’s finances for all those with an interest in the Town's

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this’

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

Town cof Johnstown
Attn: Diana Seele, Clerk/Treasurer
BO Box 609
Johnstown, CC BOS534
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TOWN OF JCHNSTCWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2014

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash 551,130,507
Receivables-Net 3,592,319
Inventory
Due from Other Funds 202,543

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assests:
Capital Assets

Land and Water Rights 99,633
Depreciable Buildings, Property,

And Equipment, net . 5,011,338
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

e L T ym—

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payakle and Accrued Liabilities 370,666
Due to COther Funds 39,711
Daferred Revenue 3,150,000
Total Current Liabilities 3,560,377
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Total Liabilities 3,560,377
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of
related debt 8,110,971

Restricted 51,364,892

Total Net Assets 560,475,963

Business-Type
Activities

$22,880,461 $ 74,010,968

274,354 3,866,673
2,497 2,497
25,235 227,778
23,182,547 178,107,916
3,024, 654 3,124,287
15,966,992 24,978,330

163,248 533, 914
188, 067 227,778
3,150, 000

351, 315 3,911, 692
351,315 3,911, 692

18,881, 646 28,102,617
22,831,232 14,196,224

541,822,878 8102,258,841

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Costs Capital Grants

for and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:
General Govermment 8 639,305  $1,149,743 § 3
Public Safety 1,798,463 266,217
Public Works 2,533,013 2,064,540
Health and Welfare 113,501 24,592
Culture and Recreation 1,025,715 694,814
Total Governmental
Activities 6,130,397 4,199,906
Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,507,884 2,292,837 2,21%,000
Wastewater 1,286,702 1,617,835 658,043
Drainage 239,233 459,290
Library 469,021 380,036
Total Business-Type
- Activities 3,502,850 4,749,998 2,877,043
Total Primary Government 5 9,633,247 58,949,904 5 $ 2,877,043

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Taxes
Earnings on Investments
Pransfers

Total General Revenues
and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beglmnning
January 1, 2014

Net Assets, Ending
December 31, 2014




Net (Expense} Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

=t i e L L et e i ) e e P o S i B ol Kk Al ek e P S T e A Lt i n At

52,524,615

e

SEE NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37,142,171

541,822,878

12

Governmental Business-Type '
Activities Activities Total :
E 490,438 3 5 490,438
{ 1,532,246} ( 1,532,2486)
{ 468,473) ( 468,473)
{ 89,309) ( 89,309)
{ 330,901) { 330,901)
( 1,93C,491) { 1,530,491)
3,003,943 3,003,943
989,176 989,176
220,057 220,057
{ 88,985) { 88, 985)
4,124,191 4,124,191
( 1,930,491) 4,124,191 2,193,700
3,431,025 3,431,025
277,006 277,008
6,006,200 6,006,200
364,171 394,171
224,813 105,136 328,549
{ 451, 380) 451,380
9,881,835 556,516 10,438,351
7,951,344 4,680,707 12,632,051

89,666,790

5102,298, 841




TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLCRADOC

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014

General
ASBSETS
Cash $ 24,032,307
Accounts Receivable 442,319
Due from Other Funds 188, 067
General Property Taxes Receivable 3,150,000
Total Assets 3 27,812,693
LIABILITIES
Accounts Pavable 5 370,666
Due to Other Funds ) 35,922
Deferred Revenue 3,150,000
Total Liabilities 3,556,588
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 24,256,105
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances $ 27,812,693

$ 10,192,698

o

ey




Use Tax
Capital
Improvement

3,789

& 12,677,976

SEE NCTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other
Governmental
Fands

10,687

13

$ 51,130,507
442,319
202,543

3,150,000

5 54,925,368

5 370,666
39,711
3,150,000

5 54,925,369

==
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TCWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

RECONCILIATION QF THE BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2014

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Capital assets used in governmental activities

Net assets of governmental activities

14

$51, 364,992

9,110,971

$60,475,963

e




TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-—

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31,

General
REVENUES
Taxes 5 6,944,850
Licenses & Permits 1,028,099
Intergovernmental Revenue 529,031
Charges for Ssrvices 539,124
Fines & Forfeits 131,488
Other 50,819
Earnings on Investments 128,382
Total Revenues 8,351,793
EXPENDITURES
General Goveérnment 570,763
Public Safety 1,627,885
Public Works 1,157,403
Health and Welfare 113,901
Culture and Recreation 858,921
Total Expenditures 4,329,883
EXCESS OF REVENURS OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 5,021,910
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 43,350
Transfers Out ( 1,137,594)
Total Other Financing
Sources '(Uses) ( 1,094,244)
NET CHAMNGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,927,666
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 20,328,439

Decenber 31, 2014 24,256,105

e et o i et e

8,588

1,495,925

8,696,773




I

Use Tax
Capital
Imprevenent

s 3,063,231

77,582
1,040,896

1,140,092

1,981,221

2,027,885

10,650,091

Other
Governmental
Funds

100,321
149,350
60,587

125,822
8,112

81,374
118,386

127,383

{ 3,800)

713,249

3,524,964

54,238,213

510,108,402
2,763,035
589,618
539,124
131,488
176,641
224,813

570,763
1,795,449
2,427, 995

113, 901
1,008, 908

650,014
{ 1,141,394)

8,164,725

43,200,267

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
7 EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF COVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
vear Ended December 31, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 58,164,725

i Covernmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated uvseful lives and

reported as depreciation expense { 213,381,

Change in net assets of governmental activities

16
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TOWN OF JCHNSTOWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPBENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
vear Ended December 31, 2014

Original Varlance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes % 6,944,850 5 5,219,000 & 1,725,850
Licenses and Permits 1,028,099 291,800 136,299
Intergovernmental 529,031 445,500 83,531
Charges for Services 539,124 380,100 159,024
Fines and Feorfeits 131,488 60,500 70,988
Other 50,819 39,500 11,319
Earnings on Investments 128,382 42,000 86,382
Total Revenues 9,351,793 6,478,400 2,873,393
EXPENDITURES
General Government 570,763 616,500 45,737
Public Safety 1,627,895 1,941,400 313,505
Public Works 1,157,403 1,182,800 - 25,397
Health and Welfare ’ 113,901 122,700 8,799
Culture and Recreation 859,921 1,465,800 605,879
Total Expenditures 4,329,883 5,329,200 999,317
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER} EXFPENDITURES 5,021,910 1,149,200 3,872,710
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 43,350 45,000 ¢ 1,650)
Transfers Cut ( 1,137,594) { 1,137,600) 6
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,927,666 56,600 3,871,066
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 20,328,439 19,004,000 1,324,439
December 31, 2014 $24,256,105 $19,060,600 $ 5,195,505

SEE NOTES TO PINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF JOHNSTCWN, COLORARO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)

USE TAX CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2014

December 31, 2014 512,677,276 § 9,716,000

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget {(Unfavorable}
REVENUES
Use Tax 3 3,063,231 3 850,000 $ 2,213,231
Earnings on Investments _ 58,082 50,000 8,082
Total Revenues 3,121,313 900,000 2,221,313
EXPENDITURES 1,140,092 1,778,000 637,508
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER}
EXPENDITURES 1,981,221 { 878,000) 2,859,221
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 46,664 48,800 { 2,136)
Transfers Cut
Total Other Financing
Sources ({(Uses) 46,664 48,800 ( 2,136}
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,027,885 { 829,200) 2,857,085
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 10,650,091 10,545,200 104,891
5 2,961,976

SER NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET ({(LEGAL BASIS)
IMPACT FEE FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Impact Fees $ 1,585,586 & 594,000 5 991,586
FEarnings on Investments 30,237 4Q,000 { 9,763)
Total Revenues 1,615,823 634,000 981,823
EXPENDITURES 119,898 1,119,100 999,202
EXCESS OF REVENUES QOVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES : 1,485,925 ( 485,100) 1,981,025
OTHER FINANCING SCOURCES {(USES}
Transfers Out
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,495,925 ( 485,100) 1,981,025
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 8,696,773 8,361,900 334,873
December 31, 2014 510,192,698 $7,876,800 52,315,898

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Drainage
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $12,003,161 5 7,454,987 & 1,945,383
Accounts Receivable, net 17,869 214,486 41,999
Inventory 2,497
Due from QOther Funds 4,102 . 21,133
Total Current Assets : 12,027,825 7,669,473 2,008,525
Capital Assets
Land & Water Rights 3,013,648 11,006
Improvements—Other 12,941,931 7,329, 985
Equipment i 14,523 418
15,870,102 7,341,409
Leas accumulated deprecilation ( 4,784,640} ( 1,880,459)
Total Capital Assets 11,185,462 5,450,950
Total Assets 23,213,081 13,120,423 2,008,525
LIABILITIES

Current Liabkilities:
Payable from Current Assets:

Accounts Payable 131,500

Accrued Liabilities 15, 087 16,661

Due to Other Funds 28,240 109, 687 50,140
Total Current Lisbilities 174,827 126, 348 50,140

Long-Term Liabilities:

Total Liabilities 174,827 126,348 50,140
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net
of related debt 11,185,462 5,450,950
Restricted 11,852,802 7,543,125 1,958,385

Total Net Assets 523,038,264 512,894,075 § 1,958,385




-

Library Total
$ 1,476,920 522,880,461
274,354
2,497
25,235
1,476,920 23,182,547
3,024,654
2,885,084 23,167,000
14,941
2,895,084 26,206,595
{ 539, 850) { 7,214,949)
2,355,234 18,991,646
3,832,154 42,174,193
131,500
31,748
188,067
351,315
351,315
2,355,234 18,991,646
1,476,920 22,831,232
$ 3,832,154 541,822,878

SEE NCTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOWN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

Year

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operations & Maintenance

Administration
Depreciation
Amortization

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCCME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Grants

Earnings on Investmenis

OF JCHNSTOWN, COLORADC

EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities = Enterprise Funds

$ 2,058,475
234,362

987,065
188, 625
289,079
23,125

(EXPENSES)

Interest on Indebtedness

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTICNS

TRANSFERS
in
Qut
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTICNS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NET ASSETS
January 1, 2014

December 31, 2014

830,348

182, 200
( 86,214)
2,219,000

3,145,334

15,852,930

523,038,264

68, 905

B72,709
279,953
134,040

383,651

668,043

e et e e

1,041,694

11,952,381

512,994,075

8 400,280
59,010

225,810

225,810

1,732,575

51,958,385




5 353,787
26,249

57,850

————

{ 87,525}

267,868

3,564,285

53,832,154

Ees =

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$ 4,361,472
388,526

2,520,045
468,578
430, 969

23,125

1,247,281

105,136
( 133)

————— e

1,352,284

537,594
{ 86,214)
2,877,043

4,680,707

37,142,171
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business~type Activities-Enterprise Funds

———— e e i e i A L B B B e e e e e e e o e e e

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers & users 5 2,026,220

Cash pald to suppliers ( €31,788)
Cash paid to enployees ( 261,8175)

Net cash provided by operating
activities 1,132,557

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers In 182,200
Transfers Out- ‘ { 86,214y

Net Cash Provided By Noncapltal
Financing Activities 85,686

$ 1,584,864
{ 794,778)
{ 346,410)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal Paid on Notes and Bonds { 1,408,000}
Interest Faid on Notes and Bonds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Contributed Capital received 2,219,000
Proceeds from Loan
Net Cash Used For Capital And
Related Financing Activities 811,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Farnings on Investments 45,405
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2,084,948
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
January 31, 2014 9,918,213
December 31, 2014 312,003,161

{1,497,136)
658,043

( 342,899)

7,797,886

5 7,454,987

Drainage
% 459,290
{ 159,694)
( 84, 605)
214,991
( 353,800)
( 133)
{ 353,933
5,753
( 133,18%)
2,078,582
$ 1,945,393




—

§ 380,036
{ 176,316)
( 234,855)

325,719

1,151,201

§ 1,476,920

Eofs s e ]

1,762,576)
927,745)

S 4,450,410
{
{

{ 86,214)

( 1,761,800)
{ 133)
{ 1,497,136)

2,877,043

1,934,579

20,945,882

SEE NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCCME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating Income {Loss) 5 784,943 S 331,133 $ 220,190 ${ 88,985)5 1,247,281

e A e i e e T R T T P e e s e e o ot o e b e e e R

Adjustments to reccncile

operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Depreciation & Amortizaticn 322,204 134,040 57,850 514,094
Grant
Change in assets and
liakbilities:

{Increase) decrease in

accounts receivable 26,617 ( 32,971) ( 3,532) { 9,886)
(Increase) decrease in

inventory 113 113
Increase (decrease) in .

accounts payable ( 5,637y ( b5,187) { 10,824)
Increase (decrease) in

accrued liabilities 8,419 16,661 { 1,667) 23,413)
Increase (decrease) in

due to other funds ( 4,102) { 4,102)
Total adjustments 347,614 112,543 | 5,199) 57,850 512,808

NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 1,132,557 & 443,676 8 214,991 $( 31,135)% 1,760,089

SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS

23



[

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 ~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity:

The Town of Johnstown,; Colorado, is a Coleorado Home Rule
Town and was organized on March 21, 1907, as an
incorporated municipality under applicable Colorado
statues and is administered by an elected Mayor and Town
Cocuncil. The Town provides the following services to the
residents and businesses: public safety (police and
building inspection), hilghways and streets, sanitation,
water, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning
and zoning, judicial, and general administrative
services.

Management has considered all potential component units
in defining the Town for financial reporting purposes.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements present the Town of Johnstown,
Colorado ({the primary government). There are no
component units included in the Town’s reporting entity.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report Linformation on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the Town. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from ‘these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
frem certaln legally separate component units for which
the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to
which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or appiicants who purchase, use,
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2} grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a  particular
Function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major dindividual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial
Statement Presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported
using the economic rescurces measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
funds. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using
the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual Dbasis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current-
pexicd. For this purpose, the government considers
revenues to be availlable if they are collected within
sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related
to compensated absences
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment
is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, cilgarette taxes, sales
taxes, use taxes, interest revenue and charges for
services are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been rocognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash 1s received
by the government.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, excspt those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

The Impact Fee Fund is a special revenue fund that was
established to account for all impact fee revenues
specifically earmarked for maintenance and improvements.

The Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund is a speclal revenue
fund that was created to make capital improvements for
the Town with use tax.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund accounts for user charges and the expenses
for operating, financing and maintaining the Town’s water
system.

The Wastewater TIund accecunts for user charges and
expenses for operating, financing and maintaining the
Town’s sanitary sewer system.

The Drainage Fund accounts for user charges and expenses
for operating, financing and maintaining the Town's
drainage system. .

The Library Fund acccunts for user charges and expenses

for operating, financing and maintaining the Town’'s
library system.
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB
Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund activities,
payables and receivables. All internal balances in the
Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated except those
representing balances between the governmental activities
and the business-type activities, which are presented as
internal balances and eliminated in the total primary
government column. In the Statement of Activities,
ipternal service fund transactions have been eliminated;
however, those transactions between governmental and
business-type activities have not been eliminated.

The Town applies all applicable FASB pronouncements as
well as private-sector standard issued on or before
November 30, 1989, to the government-wide financial
statements and the proprietary fund types, unless those
pronouncements  conflict with ox contradict  GASB
prenouncements. The Town has elected not to apply
private-sector standards issued after November 30, 1289.

Accounts reported as program revenues include 1} charges
to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Tnternally dedicated rescurces are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. —Likewise,

‘general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’'s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of all the enterprise funds
are charges to customers for sales and gervices.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost
of gales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not mneeting this definition are reported as
noncperating revenues and expenses.
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TCWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available fer use, it is the Town's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources
as they are needed.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

Property Taxes:

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property
as of January 1. Taxea ars payable in two installments
on February 28 and June 15, or im total on April 30.
Property taxes are billed and collected by Weld and
Larimer Counties, Colorado. Taxes for the following year
are levied no later than December 15 and are recorded as
a receivable with a corresponding offset to deferred
revenue.

Cash and Deposits:

The Town’'s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be
cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investment practices are governed by the Town's own
investment policy and procedures. Interest income earned
on pooled investments is allocated based on each fund's
share of those investments.

Receivables and Payables:

Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from
other funds (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or advances to/from other funds (l.e., non—current
portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as due to/from othex
funds. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities
are reported in the government-wide financial statements
as internal balances.
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Inventories and Prepaid Items:

Inventories of enterprise funds are valued at cost using
the first-in/first-out (FIF0} method. Certain payments
to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting
pericds and are recorded as prepaild items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Reserved/Restricted Asgets:

211 of the Town’s assets are restricted as of December
31, 2014,

Capital Assets:

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment,
and infrastructure assets (i.e., streets and roads,
bridges, stormwater drainage, traffic signals, and
gimilar  itemns) are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the Town as assets with an initial,
individual cest of more than 85,000 and an estimated
useful 1life in excess of cone year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated falr market wvalue on the date
received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add tc the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized
and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related fized assets, as applicable. Retroactive
reporting of general governmental infrastructure has not
been implemented.

Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.

Depreciation expense is reflected as an operating expense
in the government-wide statement of activities.
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADOC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

-Estimated useful lives for asset types are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 10-50 years
Machinery and Equipmesnt 3-30 vyears
Infrastzructure 10-50 years

Compensated Absences:

It is the policy of the Town to permit employees to
accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused vacation
and sick leave benefits, Upon separation from Town
service, -<earned but unused vacation is paid to the
employees and is recorded and recognized in the financial
statements. FEarned but unused sick leave i1z not paid to
the employees and is not recorded nor recognized in the
financial statements.

Long-term Cbhbligaticns:

In  the government-wide financial statements and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
tyvpe statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or digcount. Bonds payable are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term
of the related debt, '

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types
recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond

issuance costs, during the current period, The face
amcunt of debt issued 1s reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issued is reported

as other financing scurces while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses., Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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TCWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NCTES TO FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS- continued

Fund Equity:

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds
repcert reservations ¢f fund kbalance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information:

The Town follows the Colcrado Local Government Budget Law
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements.

Prior to October 15, the person designated by the
Council submits a proposed budget for the calendar
year commencing the follewing January 1. The budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

The HNotice of Budget is published and public
hearings are conducted during council meetings to
obtain taxpayer comments.

Prior te December 15, the final budget is adopted
and the certification of mill levies to the Weld and
Larimer County Commissioners is approved.

Prior to December 31, the Council adopts an ordinance
or a resoluticon making appropriations for the
ensuing calendar vyear.

. Amendments to the current calendar vyear budget
mugt he approved prior to spending money not
included in the original or prior budgets.

The budgets for the Town of Johnstown are adopted
and presented on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) except  that
bond proceeds are Ltreated as other financing
sources and bond principal payments are treated as
expenditures.
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TOWN OF JOHNSTCOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAI STATEMENTS - continued

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted
appropriations at the fund level for all funds.
Appropriations for all funds lapse at year-end.

Tax, Spending, and Debt Limitations:

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State
Constituticn, Article ¥, Section 20, commonly known as
the Taxpayers Bill of Rights or TABOR. TABOR contains
several limitations, including revenue raising, spending
abilitiss, and other specific requirements of state and
local gocvernments. The Town of Johnstown, Colorado,
voters chose to waive the revenue limitations imposed by
TABOR. The Town believes it is in compliance with the
other requirements of the Amendment. However, the Town
has made certain interpretations of the Amendment’s
language in order to determine its compliance. The
Amendment is complex and subject to Judicial
interpretation.

NOTE 2 ~ CASH, DEPQOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town invests excess ildle cash funds under the prudent
investor rule. The criteria for selection of investments
and their order of priority are: 1} safety; 2)
liguidity; 3) yield. The Town Clerk/Treasurer is
responsible for all of the deposits and investments of
the Town. As the Town’s need for funds is not constant,
investments are scheduled in coordination with all funds
of the Town such that there is as little idle cash as
practical., The Town funds are invested in FDIC insured
checking, savings, certificate of deposit accounts and
collateralized local inwvestment pools.

Cash, deposits and investments are carried at cost.
Colorado state statutes require all eligible public
depositories to pledge collateral with a custodian having
a market value equal to at least one hundred-two percent
of the aggregate of all deposits. All institutions
holding Town of Jchnstown deposits are currently
certified as eligible public depositories in accordance
with the statutes.

At December 31, 2014, the Town's cash, deposits and
investments were insured or secured as follows:
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Type Rating Carrying Value
. Deposits:
Pirst National Bank 548,496,506
! NorthStar Bank Colorado 2,304,221
_J County Treasurer 88,320
Cash 50
- Investments
: COLOTRUST ABAM 11,602,242
: CSAFE ARAmM 11,519,629
: "Total Deposits and Investments £74,010,968

===m=m—mmmrmrne e

A The investment pocls represent investments in the
' Colorado Government Liguid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST) and
Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) which are a
2a7 - like pool. The fair wvalue of the pool is
determined by the pools’ share price. The Town has no
regulatory oversight for the pool.

- Interest Rate Risk - The Town minimizes the risk by
investing operating funds in shorter term securities
{(with a maximum cf no more than five years) and local
investment pools. '

Credit Risk - Colorado Statues limits investments in
which local governments may invest, The Town has no
investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Town has nc policy
-7 on the amount the Town may invest in any one issuer.

NOTE 3 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to wvarious risks of loss related

to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction

- of  assets; errors and omissilons, injuries to
employees, and natural disasters. The Town

1 utilizes commercial insurance to  meet its
: insurance needs, including  workman’s compensation.
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

NOTE 4 — JOINT VENTURE

The Town participates with  other towns and cities in
the Weld 911 Emergency Telephione gervice Authority (the
Authority which provides emergency 911 dialing services to
telephone customers within the Town limits. This Jjoint
venture does not meet criteria for inclusion in the Town's
financial statements because the Authority is fully
independent of the Town. The Authority has separate

governance and management having the authority to
receive the dispensed funds, approve budgets, sign
contracts, determine services to be provided, hire

personnel, acquire agencies, or any other legal function
within the scope of its organizational documents and
bylaws.

The Authority is primarily funded through a $.50 per month
surcharge to each customer’ s telephone pill. BAccounting
responsibility has been place with Weld County, Colorado
which treats this authoxity as an agency fund for 1its
purposes.

NOTE 5 - POLICEMEN'S PENSION FUND

The Town of Johnétown, Colorado, contributes to the
aratewide Defined Benefit plan, a cost—-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the

Colorado Fire and Police Pension Association. The
Statewide Defined Benefit Plan provides retirement
henefits for members and beneficiaries. Death and

digablility coverage is provided for members through the
Statewide Death and Disability Plan which is also
administered by the Colorado Fire and Police Pension
Association. This is a non-contributory plan. All full-
time, pald police officers of the Town are members of the
atatewide Defined Benafit Plan and the Statewide Death
and Disability Plan. Title 31, Article 30, of the
Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish benefit provisions to the state
legislature. FPPA issues a publicly available annual
financial report that includes financial gtatements and
required supplementary information for both the Statewide
Defined Benefit Plan and the Statewide Death
and Disability Plan. That report may be obtained by
writing to FPPA of Colorado, 5290 DIC parkway, Suite 100,
Englewood, Colorado, 80111, or by calling FPPA at 303-
770-3772 in the Denver metro area, O 1-800-332-FPPA
{3772) from outslide the metro area.
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NOTE 7 -

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADG
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ continued

Benefits to officers from the Statewide Defined Benefit
Plan are integrated with benefits provided by Social
Security. .

Plan members and the Town are required to contribute at
a rate set by statute. The contribution requirements
of plan members and the Town are established under
Title 31, Article 3C, Part 10, of the CRS, ag' amended.
The contribution rate for members is 3.8% of covered
salary and for the Town is 3.8% of covered salary.
During 2014, the Town and officers of the Police
Department each contributed $49,345 to the Statewide
Defined Benefit Plan.

SALES AND USE TAX

A 3% tax is imposed on the sale or use of ‘all tangible
personal property in the Town. The State of Colorado
administers the collection of such taxes from licensed
vendors and remits the collections on a monthly basis to
the Town.

The 3% tax has no restrictions and is used for general
operating purposes within the General Fund.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Tndividual fund interfund receivable and payable
halances at December 31, 2014, are as' follows:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Governmental Activities:
General Fund $ 188,067 s 35,922
Contingent Fund
Cemetery Fund 3,155
Conservation Trust Fund
Use Tax Capital Improvement 3,789
Johnson’s Corner Capital
Inprovement 7,532 3,789
Impact Fee Fund
Business-type Activities:
Water Fund 4,102 28,240
Wastewater Fund 109, 687
Library Fund
Drainage Fund 21,133 506,140

5 227,778 5 227,778
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NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Fund
Governmental Activities:
General Fund
Contingent Fund
Paving Fee Fund
Impact Fee Fund
Use Tax Capltal Improvement

Fund

Equipment Replacement Fund
Public Works Construction Fund

Business—type Activities:
Water Fund

Wastewater Fund
Drainage Fund

Library Fund

NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

Balance
January 1,

Interfund
Transfers In

e e s e e i s

Interfund
Transfers Cut

b 43,350 81,137,594
225,000
3,800
46,664
375,000
182,200 86,214
355,394
31,227,608 $1,227,§08
Balance Due Within

December 31, One

2014 Additions Reductions 2014 Year
Governmental Activities:
Capital Leases 5 $ s 5 =
Business-type Activities:
Notes Payable 5 5 5 5 3
Beonds Payable 1,760,000 1,760,000

$1,760,000 3

51,760,000 3
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWHN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

NOTE 10 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Balancs
January 1, 2014
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 5 99,633
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings 9,643,336

Improvements, other
than buildings 42,932
Equipment 2,551,017

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 12,237,285

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings {( 1,242,411)
Improvements, other

than buildings ( 42,932
Equipment ( 1,727,223)

Total accumulated
depreciation { 3,012,566)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 9,224,71¢
Governmental activities capital
assets, net 5 9,324,352

Additions Deletions

152,572

190,2865)

175, 688}
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Balance
December 31, 2014

9,643,336

42,932
2,703,589

( 1,432,676)

{ 42,932)
{ 1,902,911)

5 9,110,971



TOWN OF .JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Balance Balance
Januvary 1, 2014 Additicns Deletions December 31, 2014

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:

Land and water rights

Capital assets, being
depreciated:

Improvements, other than

buildings
Equipment

Total assets being
being depreciated

$ 3,024,654 $ $ 5 3,024,654
21,669,864 1,497,136 ' 23,167,000

14,941 14,941
21,684,805 1,497,136 23,181,941

Less accumulated depreciation for

Improvements other than
buildings
Equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

Business~type activities
capital assets, net

{ 6,709,039) ( 490,969} (7,200,008)
e U 4
{6 72§ 980) { ) 490, 969) i i _( 7 254_%21
14,960,825  { 1,006,167} 15,965;,_?92
$17,985,479  ${1,006,167)% $18,991, 646

38



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functicons/programs of the
primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government 3 88,542
Public Safety 84,388
Public Works 176,216
Culture and recreation 16,807

.

Total depreciation expense-
governmental activities 5365, 953

Buginess-type activities:

Water $299,079
Wastewater 134,040
Library 57,850

Total depreciation expense-
business-type activities $490,96%
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TOWN CF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to acccunt for all transactions of a government
which are not accountad for in ancther fund.

The General Fund is used to account for the ordinary operations of a
governmental wunit which are financed from taxzes and other general
revenues.
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TCWN OF JOENSTOWN, COLORADO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS}
Year Ended Dacember 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
TAXES
General Property Taxes $3,427,206 42,860,000 $ bBe7,206
Specific Cwnership Taxes 277,006 190,000 87,006
Sales Taxes 2,842,648 1,875,000 967,648
Franchise Taxes 394,171 290, 000 102,171
Interest on Delinguent Taxes 3,819 4,000 ( 181)
Total Taxes 86,944,850 $5,219,000 51,725,850
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business Llcenses .
and Building Permits 51,023,211 s 289,400 $ 733,811
Monbusiness Licenses :
and Permits 4,888 2,400 2,488
Total Licenses
and Permits 51,028,099 s 291,800 S 736,299
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
State Shared
Cigarette Taxes S 15,758 $ 13,500 S 2,258
Highway Users' Taxes 373,432 330,000 43,432
Motor Vehicle
Regigtration Fees 47,591 37,000 10,591
County Shared
Road & Bridge Apportionment 92,250 65,000 27,250
Total Intergovernmental 5 529,031 S 445,500 5 83,531
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General Government s 55,067 5 2,100 s 52,967
Sanitation-Trash Fees 467,521 360, 000 101,521
Cemetery-Lots & Care 22,536 18,000 4,536
Total Charges for Services 3 539,124 $ 380,100 $ 159,024
FINES AND FORFEITS
Municipal Court $ 131,488 5 60,500 S 70,588
OTHER s 50,819 5 39,500 5 11,319
EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 5 86,382

$ 128,382

5 42,000
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,

GENERAL FUND

COLORADO

SCHEDULE, OF EXPENDITURES -~ ACTUAL AND BUDGET

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Legilslative

Judicial

Elections

Administration
Salaries/Manager
Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Bealth Insurance
Telephone
Utilities
Office Expenses
Repair & Maintenance
Insurance & Bends
2udit and Accounting
Legal Services
Publishing
Dues and Subscriptio
Other
Treasurer's Fees

Total Administration

Planning and Zoning

Total General Government -

Year Ended Decembsr 31,

Actual

129, 338
9,178

9,117

25,312

2,107

5,274

9,994

8,142

9,816

8, 900

33,093

3,601

ns 2,319
24,677

44,892

5570,763

2014

Original
and Final
Budget

131,700
10,500
9,100
30,000
2,100
5,000
11,700
12,700
13,800
8,900
40,000
6,000
2,800
32,700
45,000

5616, 500

(LEGAL BASIS)

Varilance
Favorable

{Unfavorable}

s 45,737
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE, OF EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Salaries 5 957,632 51,004,000 5 46,368
Payroll Taxes 87,714 76,800 9,086
Health Insurance 226,813 290,200 63, 387
Telephone 6,236 9,100 2,864
Utilities 15,072 16,400 1,328
Repairs & Maintenance 9,670 18,000 8,330
Gas & 0il 27,959 38,000 10, 041
Supplies 3,441 6,000 2,559
Insurance & Bonds 40,038 44,000 3,962
Uniforms & Cleaning 5,561 5,000 ( 561)
Operating Equipment 29,716 38,700 8,984
Workmen's Compensation ) 35,332 38,000 2,668
Retirement & Contributions 49,345 65,000 15, 655
Other : 7,686 9,800 2,114
Training 7,695 10,000 2,305
Office Supplies 5,794 6,000 - 206
Professional Services 27,403 43,200 15,787
Total Police 1,523,107 1,718,200 195,083
Protective Inspections 104,788 223,200 118,412
Total Public Safety 51,627,895 §1,941,400 $313,505
PURLIC WORKS
Maintenance of Condition
Salaries 5 2R8,4B0 $ 282,400 § 23,920
Payroll Taxes 138,197 22,000 3,803
Retirement 14,411 17,800 3,389
Health Insurance 59,249 80,000 20,751
Utilities 6,220 15,000 8,780
Repailrs & Maintenance 19,091 25,000 5,909
Gas and 0il 22,225 22,500 275
Operating Egquipment 5,790 26,500 20,710

Professional Services 2,376 3,000 624
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

COLORADO

GENERAL FUND

Year ended December 31, 2014

PUBLIC WORKS (Continued)

Streets (Continued)
COperating Supplies
Insurance & Bonds
Workmen's Compensation
Other

Total Maintenance of
Condition

Snow and Ice Removal
Contracted Services

Indirect Functicns
Street Lighting

Total Streets

Sanitation
Trash Service

Total Public Works

HEALTH AND WELEFARE

Conmunicable Disease Control

Apimal Control Services

Cemetery

Total Health & Welfare

(LEGAL BASIS)

Original Variance
and Final Favorable

Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
5 4,952 3 4,500 5 452}
23,000 24,000 1,000
8,607 16,000 7,393
5,052 6,100 1,048
447,650 544,800 97,150
16,244 20,000 3,756
232,671 218,000 ( 14,671}
696, 565 782, 800 86,235
460,838 400,000 ( 60,838}
$1,157,403 $1,182,800 $ 25,397
5 77,424 8 81,500 5 4,076
36,477 41,200 4,723
5 113,901 § 122,700 $ 8,799
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CULTURE AKD

TCWN CF JOHNSTOWN,

RECREATION

Special Programs
Senior Citizens
Community Recreation

Community Development

Total Special Programs

Parks

Total Culture and

TRANSEERS

Recreation

Library Fund

Equipment Replacement Fund

Contingent
Water Fund

Total

Fund

Transfers

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
: Year Ended December 31,

COLORADO

(LEGAL, BASIS)

2014
Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
g 54,187 5 55,500 s 1,313
36,880 53,000 16,120
727,797 1,299,500 571,703
818,864 1,408,000 589,136
41,057 57,800 16,743
$ 859,921 81,465,800 $605,879
$ 355,384 $ 355,400 5 6
375,000 375,000
225,000 225,000
182,200 182,200
51,137,594 51,137, 600 8 6
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Spacial Revenue Fund types are used to account for revenues from specific
taxes or other earmarked revenue sources which by law are designated to
finance particular functions cor activities of government.

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Use Tax Capital Improvement Fund was established to account for
collection of use tax revenues for acquisition, improvement, and
construction of capital improvements.

Tmpact Fee Fund is used to account for permit fees received from builders
for specific purposes for acquisition, improvement, and construction of
capital improvements.

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Contingent Fund was established as a financing source for unforseen
expenditures.

Cemetery Fund is to account for monies to be used in the maintenance of
the Town’s cemetery.

Paving Fee Fund is te account for monies received from builders for
paving streets within the Town.

Public Works Construction Fund was established in 2011 to account for
the receipts and expenditures for the construction of a new Public Works

building.

Equipment Replacement Fund was established in 2004 to accumulate monies
for equipment replacement.

Johnson’s Corner Capital Improvement Fund is to account for sales tax
revenues for the purpcse of capital improvements.

Conservation Trust Fund is tc account for receipts from the State of
Colerado lottery for parks and recreation expenditures.




TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2014

Paving Public Works

Contingent Cemetery  Fee Construction
Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash 51,026,027 5 98,450 § 512 8
Due From Other Funds 3,155
Total Assets 51,026,027 $101, 645 $ 512 g
LIABILITIES
Lecounts Payable 5 5 5 8
Due To Other Funds
Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 1,026,027 101,645 512

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 51,026,027 5101, 645 5 512 5

"
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Johnson’s Corner

Equipment Capital Conservation
Replacement Improvement Trust
Fund Fund Fund Total
$1,033,709 S 17,510 $2,055,067 54,231,315
7.,532 10,687
51,033,709 3 25,042 $2,055,067 54,242,002
= g $ S
3,789 3,789
3,789 3,789
1,033,709 21,253 2,055,067 4,238,213
51,033,709 5 25,042 52,055,087 54,242,002
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TOWN CF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

NOWMAJCOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES l

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Paving Public Works

Contingent Cemetery  Fee Construction
Fund Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES

Taxes 5 3 5 $

TLicenses and FPermits 850

Intergovermmental Revenue

Other 19,512 2,056

Farnings on Investments 1,065 81 3 A

Total Revenues 20,577 2,137 853 ’
EXPENDITURES '

Public Safety

Culture and Recreation
. Public Works 3,591

Total Expenditures 3,591 .
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER '

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 16,986 2,137 853 3
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .
. Operating Transfers In 225,000 .

Operating Transfers Cut ( 3,800} "]
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 241,986 2,137 { 2,547)

RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES
January 1, 2014 784,041 99,508 3,459
December 31, 2014 $1,026,027 $101, 645 3 512 & :
E
y




Equipment
Replacement
Fund

10,925
3,687

290,738

742,971

Johnson’s Cornern
Capital
Improvement

Fund

5 100,321

Consarvation
Trust
Fund

148,500
50,587
93,328

3,256

O R ya

178,289

178,289

1,876,778

$2,055,087

$ 100,321
149, 350
60,587
125,822
8,112

117,049

600, 000
( 3,800)

713,249

3,524,964

54,238,213
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TOWN CF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CONTINGENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVERUES
Other
Farnings on Investments
Total Revenue

TRANSFER
From Other Funds

EXPENDITURES

TRANSFER
To Other Funds

EXCESS OF REVENUES
AND TRANSFERS OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

RESTRICTED FUND RBALANCE
January 1, 2014

December 31, 2014

Actual

241, 986

784,041

51,026,027

Original
and Final
Budget

{703,800}

703,800

47

(LEGAL BASIS)

Variance
Favorable
{Unfavorable)

$ 19,512

945,786

51,026,027
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TOWN OF JOENSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CEMETERY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAT BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Lctual Budget {(Unfavorable)

! REVENUES

. Sale of Lots $ 2,058 3 2,800 54 744)

f Earnings on Investments 81 200 { 119)

: Total Revenues 2,137 3,000 { 863)
EXPENDITURES

FXCESS8 OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENDITURES 2,137 3,000 { 863}

RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 99,508 99,300 208

December 31, 2014 5101, 645 5102, 300 5( 655}
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TOWN OF JOHENSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
PAVING FEE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ~ ACTUAI, AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014,

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Paving Fees 5 850 & 5 850
Earnings on Investments 3 3
Total Revenues 853 853
EXPENDITURES
TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS { 2,800) { 3,800)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES {( 2,947) { 3,800) 853
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 3,458 3,800 { 341)
December 31, 2014 5 512 S 5 512
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Other $ 10,925 g 5 30,925
Earnings on Investments 3,687 3,000 687
Total Revenues 14,612 3,000 11,612
TRANSFER
From Other Funds 375,000 375,000
EXPENDITURES { Gg,874) ( 114,000) 15,126
TRANSFER
To Cther Funds
EXCESS OF REVENUES
AND TRANSFERS OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 290,738 264,000 26,738
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 742,971 689,700 53,271
December 31, 2014 £1,033,709 5 953,700 % 80,009
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,

COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
JOHNSON' 8 CCRNER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Sales Tax
Farnings on Investments

Total Revenues

TRANSFERS
From Other Funds

EXPENDITURES

TRANSFERS
To Other Funds

EXCESS OF REVENURS
AND TRANSFERS OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
Janvary 1, 2014

December 31, 2014

Aotual

20

$ 21,2L3

Original
and Final
Budget

10

(LEGAL BASIS)

Variance
Favorable
{(Unfavorable}

5 11,321
10

5 21,253
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TOWN OF JCHNSTOWN, COLORADO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
‘ CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASBIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
: and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES .
Park Fees = 148,500 & 62,500 S 86,000
Colorado Lottery '
.Distribution 60, 587 50,000 10,587
Other 93,329 46,000 47,329
Earnings on Investments 3,256 5,000 ({ 1,744)
Total Revenues 305,672 163,500 142,172
TRANSFERS
From (To) Other Funds
EXPENDITURES ( 127,383) ( 180,800) 53,417
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND TRANSFERS 178,289 ( 17,3000 185,589
RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
January 1, 2014 1,876,778 1,760,900 115,878

December 31, 2014 $ 2,055,067 % 1,743,600 8 311,487
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TOWN OF JCHNSTOWN, COLORADO

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

These funds are established to finance

and account for the acquisition,
ocperation and maintenance of governmen

tal facilities and services,

The Major Enterprige Funds are Water,

Wastewater, Drainage and Library
| funds.



‘TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

ACTUAL AND BUDGET

(LEGAL BASIS)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES

Water Sales
Other
Earninhgs on Investments

Transfer~From Other Funds

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Operations
Salaries
Payroll Taxes
Retirement
Utilities
Repairs & Maintenance
Gas & 011
Operating Supplies
Insurance
Professional Services
Health Insurance
Water Assessment

Workmen's Compensation

Total Operations

Actual

£2,058,2475
234,362
45,405
182,200

197,500
14,178
9,585
201,303
77,249
11,691
270,866
20,902
52,098
45,477
88,706
7,500
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Original
and Final
Budget

$1,675,000
100, 000
35, 000
182, 300

209,100
16,000
11,000

171,500

176,000
14,500

597, 600
26,000
62,000
54,500
96, 000

7,500

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)

5 383,475
134,362
10,405

( 100)

11, 600
1,822
1,405

( 29,803)

98,751

2,809
326,734
5,098
9,902
9,023
7,294



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

o WATER ENTERPRISE FUND -~ continued

| SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget {(Unfavorable)
Administration
Salaries/Manager 64,375 68, 200 3,825
Payroll Taxes 4,683 5,600 217
Retirement 4,633 5,500 867
Office Expense 15,025 17,100 2,075
Telephone 1,871 1,800 { 71)
g Health Insurance 13,171 16,000 2,829
ig Other 13,154 15,700 2,546
| Legal 2,813 8,000 5,187
?, Professional Services 68, 900 73,700 4,800
's‘ Total Administration 188,625 211, 600 22,975
i Interest on Debt 7,200 7,200
: Retirement of Debt 1,408,000 1,408,000
i Capital Outlay
: .Tansfer to Other Funds 86,214 90, 000 3,786
; Total Expenses 2,679,904 3,158,500 478,5%6
; EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
{UNDER) EXPENSLES { 159,462) $(1,166,200) S 1,006,738
RECONCILIATION TC NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS)
Bdd:
Capital Outlay
Principal Payments 1,408,000
Capital Contributions 2,219,000
: Lesa:
Depreclation { 299,079
Amortization { 23,125}

NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS)
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE QOF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-
ACTUAL AND RUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)

Yzar FEnded December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Wastewater Fees 51,548,930 51,230,000 & 318, 830
Earnings on Investments 52,518 30,000 22,518
Other 68, 905 7,500 61,405
Total Revenues 1,670,353 1,287,500 402,853
EXPEFNSES
Operations
Salaries 236,068 238,700 2,632
Payroll Taxes 23,975 24,300 325
Retirement 11,391 13,700 2,309
Utilities 245,081 200,000 ¢ 49,081)
Repairs & Maintenance 97,536 139,700 42,164
Supplies 144,496 216,400 71,904
Insurance 22,792 26,600 3,808
Professional Service 32,190 26,000 ( 6,190)
Health Insurance 55,180 65,300 10,120
Total Operations 872,709 950, 700 77,591
Administration
Salaries/Manager 110,342 112,000 1,658
Payroll Taxes 7,664 8,800 1,136
Retirement 8,034 8,100 66
Health Insurance 23,472 29,000 5,528
Ofifice Expense 14,025 18,500 4,475
Other 116,416 153,900 37,484
Total Administration 279,953 330,300 50,347
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TOWN OF JCHNSTOWN, COLORADD

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND — continued
SCEEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-—
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)

Year FEnded December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Onfavorable)
Retirement of Dabt
Interest on Debt
: Transfer to Other Funds
! Capital Outlay 1,467,136 1,512,000 14,864
L e
| Total Expenses 2,649,798 2,793,000 143,202
EXCESS OF REVENUES
§ OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (979, 445) $(1,525,500) 3 546,055

i RECONCILIATION TO NET INCOME (GAAP BASTS)

Add:
5 Capital Qutlay 1,497,138
; Principal Payments
; Capital Contributions 658,043
| Less:
| Depreciaticn { 134,040)
NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS) $1,041,694
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REVENUES

Drainage Fees

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

DRATNAGE ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET (LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Final Favorable
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)

5 400,280 8 300,000 '8 100,280

(

2,247)
59,010

Earnings on Investments 5,753 8,000
Other 58,010
Transfer from Other Funds

Total Revenues 465,043 308,000

EXPENSES

Operating Expenses 239,100 327,000
Interest on Debt 133 300
Retirement of Debt 353, 800 353,800
Transfer to Other Funds

Total Expenses 593,033 681,100

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENSES

( 127,990) S( 373,100) 8 245,110

RECONCILIATION TO NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS)

Add:

Principal Payments

NET INCOME

(GAAP BASIS)

353,800
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TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO

LIBRARY ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE, OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
ACTUAL AND BUDGET {(LEGAL BASIS)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Original Variance
and Favorable
Actual Budget {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Transfer from Other Funds $ 355,394 3 355,400 8¢ 6)
Weld County Library District 353,787 355,005 ( 1,218}
Other 26,249 8,500 17,749
Farnings on Investments 1,460 1,000 460
Total Revenues 736,890 719,905 16,985
EXPENSES
Operations:
Salaries 234,855 300, 000 65,145
Payroll Taxes/Health Insurance 38,320 © 50,000 11, 680
Utilities/Telephone 32,406 47,500 15,094
Library Books & Materials 32,489 50,000 17,511
Supplies 43,483 130,750 B7,257
Repairs & Maintenance 29,608 50,000 20,392
Transfer to Other Funds
Total Operaticns _ 411,172 628,250 217,079
Retirement of Debt
Interest on Debt
Total Expenses 411,171 628,250 217,079
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 325,715 & 91,655 § 234,064

RECONCILIATION TO NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS)

Add:
Principal Payments

Less:
Depreciation ( 57,850)
NET INCOME (GAAP BASIS) $ 267,869
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The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually,

Financial Planning 02/01
Form # 350-050-36

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

City or County:
Town of Johnstown

YEAR ENDING ;
December 2014

Town of Yohnstown

This Information From The Records Of (exaniple - City of _ or County of _|Prep
Phone:

Diana Secle
-4281.00

ared By:

1. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXTENDITURE

ITEM

A, Local B.
Motor-Fuel

Taxes

1. Total receipts available

2. Minus smount used for collection expenses

3. Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes

4, Minus amount used for mass transit

5. Remainder used for highway purposes

Motor-Vehicle

C. Receipts from
State Highway-
User Taxes

Local

Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

1f. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES L. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
: AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A. Receipts from local sources: A. Loeal highway dishursements:
1. Local highway-user taxes 1. Capital outlay (from page 2) 239,000
a. Motor Fuel (from ftem LA.5.) 2, Maintenance: 375,000
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item 1B.5.) 3. Road and sireet services:
c. Total (a.h) a, Traffic control operations 1,000
2. -General fimd appropriations 393,678 b. Snow and ice removal 16,200
3. Other local imposts (from page 2) 277,000 ¢. Other 80,000
4, Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2) 0 d. Total (a through c.) 97,200
5. Transfers from toll facilities 4, General adminigtration & miscellaneous
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes: D 5 iohey law enforcament and safety 400,000
a. Bonds - Original Issues 6. Total (1 through 5) 1,111,200
b. Bonds - Refinding Issues B. Debt service on local ebligations:
c, Notes 1. Bonds:
d. Total (3. +b.+ 0.} 0 a. Interest
7. Total (1 through 6} 670,678 b, Redemption
B. Private Contributions c. Total {a. +b,) 0
C. Receipts from State government 2. Notes:
(from page 2} 440,522 - a. Interest
. Receipts from Federal Government b. Redemption
{from page 2) 0 c. Total (a.+b.) 0
F, Total receipts (A.7+B+C+D) 1,111,200 3, Total {1.c+2.c) 0
C. Paymenis to State for highways
b. Paymenis to toll facilities
E. Total disbursements (A.0+B3+C+D) 1,111,200
1V, LOCALHIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
{Show all eniries at par)
Opening Debt Amiount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A. Bonds (Total) 0
1. Bonds (Refending Portion) —
B. Notes (Total) | 0
V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE
A. Beginning Balance] B, Total Receipts  [C. Total Disbursementy D. BEnding Balance | E. Reconciliation
1,111,200 1,111,200 0
Notes and Commenis:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE

1
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LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

STATE:
Colorado

YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):

December 2014

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES -~ DETAIL

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
A.3. Other local imposts: A, Miscellaneous local receipts: H

8. Property Taxes and Assessments a. Interest on investments
b. Other local imposts: b, Traffic Fines & Penalities

1, Sales Taxes ¢. Parking Garage Fees

2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees d. Parking Meter Fees

3, Liens ¢. Sale of Surplus Property

4, Licenses f. Charges for Services

5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 277,000 g. Other Misc. Receipts

6. Total (1. through 5.) 277,000 h. Other
¢, Total (a.+b.) 277,000 i. Total (a. through h.) 0

{Carry forward to page 1)

{Carry forward to page 1}

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM | AMOUNT
C. Receipts from State Government D, Receipts from Federal Government
- 1. Highway-user taxes 3734321 1. FHWA (from Item L.D.5.)
2, State general funds 2. Other Federal agencies;
3. Other State funds: a. Forest Service
a. State bond proceeds b. FEMA
b. Project Match ¢ HUD
¢, Motor Vehicle Registrations 47,590 d, Federal Transit Admin
d. Other (Speeify) - DOLA Grant ¢, U.S. Corps of Engineers
e. Other (Specify) HS&EM 19,500 f. Other Federal
f. Total (a. through e.) 67,090 g. Total {a. through £} [i]
4, Tetal (1.+2.+3.1) 440,522 | 3. Total (1.+2.g)
{Carry forward 1o page 1)
111, DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ON NATIONAL OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY HIGHWAY TOTAL
SYSTEM SYSTEM
(a) (b) {c)
A1, Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs 0
b. Bogmeering Costs 0
¢. Construction:
" (1). New Facilities 0
(2). Capacity Improvements 0
(3). System Preservation 239,000 239,000
(4). System Enhancement & Operation 0
{5). Total Construction (1) + (2)+(3) +(4) 0 239,000 239,000
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines L.a. -+ 1.b. + 1.2.5) 0 239,000 239,000

Notes and Comments:

(Carry forward to page 1)

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)
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NOTES

DATE: 07/06/15




AGENDA ITEM 9C

PROPOSAL
FOR
ENGINEERING/COST CERTIFICATION
SERVICES
(Tamarack Consulting LLC)




TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION

AGENDA DATE: Huly 6, 2015
ITEM NUMBER: 9C

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Tamarack Consulting, LLC Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost
Certification Services (“Proposal”)

ACTION PROPOSED: Approve Tamarack Consulting, LLC’s Proposal
PRESENTED BY: Town Attorney

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: In order to assist with the JP, LLC project, the Town’s special counsel,
MaryAnn McGeady, recommended that the Town enter into an engagement agreement with Tamarack Consulting,
LLC (*Tamarack”). Tamarack will be engaged to verify that the developer’s projected costs are eligible expenses
for public financing and that the costs may be paid from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds. Once funds are
expended for the development, Tamarack will then verity that the actual expenses are similarly eligible.

Tamarack’s Proposal provides that it may be terminated with 30-day’s notice. Once the new district is organized,
the new district will either assume the agreement or enter into a new agreement with Tamarack. Given that, the
Town’s engagement with Tamarack is anticipated to terminate before the end of the year.

Fees for the engagement will be paid by the developer pursuant to the cost recovery agreement between the Town
and the developer.

LEGAL ADVICE: The Proposal was reviewed by the Town Attorney.

FINANCIAL ADVICE: Tamarack will be paid by JP, LLC from the developer’s fund.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Tamarack Consulting, LLC Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost
Certification Services.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
For Approval: I move to approve Tamarack Consulting, LLC Proposal to Provide Fngineering and Cost
Certification Services and authorize the Mayor to sign it.

For Denial: I move to deny to approval of Tamarack Consulting, LLC Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost
Certification Services,

Reviewed:




PROPOSAL




. : Tarmarack Consulting LLC
AMARA@K 8840 West Colfax ﬁenue

CONBULTING LLG Lakewood, CO 80215

TF
ﬁgl
H
nas

"

Ph. (303) 233-3265
www.tamarackconsultinglle.com

June 29, 2015

Town of Johnstown
450 South Parish
Johnstown, CO 80534

RE:  Proposal for Engineering and Cost Certification Services
Town of Johnstown

Thank you for the opportunity to provide the attached proposal for Engineering and Cost Certification Services for
the Town of Johnstown {“Town”). This proposal is based on Infermation gathered in our initial cost estimate work
and our experience from previous cost certifications,

Within this proposal are the following:
*  Project Location and General Understanding
» Exhibit A -Scope of Work
e Exhibit B - Compensaticn
»  General Conditions
+ Signature Page
»  Tamarack Consulting LLC 2015 Charge Rates Schedule

This proposal is written on behalf of the Town. At the time a matropolitan district is created, these services can be
transferred to the new district, or Tamarack can provide a new proposal upon request.

As you review each of these, please note any questions or commenis that you may have, as we are happy to discuss
those at your convenience. However, if the proposal meets your approval, please sign the Agreement and return a
signed copy to your Tamarack Project Manager, Collin Koranda, at collin.koranda@tamarackconsultingllc.com,

If you do have questions about the proposal, please call Collin at (720) 695-3974.
Thank you for the opportunity to serve youf

Sincerely,

Tamargck Consulting [1.C

Timothy A. McCarthy, PE
Principal

GiS Mapping | Engineering/Land Surveying | Construction Management | Spatial Data Collection | Special Districts




e
28 . Hod . Proposal to Provide Englneering and Cost Certification Services
* TAMARACK
41 CONSULTING LLC Town of Johnstown

PROJECT LOCATION AND GENERAL UNDERSTANDING

The project is located near the intersecticn of US-34 and I-25, in the Town of Johnstown in Larimer County,
Colorado.

Tamarack Consulting LLC will provide Engineering and Cost Certification Services as outlined herein as TASK .0 -
Initlal Engineer's Report and Certification of Current Eligible Costs and TASK 2,0 — Menthly Engineer’s Report and
Certification of Eligible Costs. The first task will include certification and reporting of costs to date, with the second
task providing similar services on a monthiy basis. For months during which little or no construction activity is
invoiced, Tamarack will write a letter to the Town stating that ne certification was performed so that the Town will
have a complete record accounting for all months.

2|Pag-e.
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288 T AM ARA CK Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost Certification Services

% ;E-E CONBULTING LLC Town of lohnstown

TASK1.0
1.1,

1.2.
1.3,

1.4.

1.5

1.6.

TASK 2.0
2.1

2.2,
2.3,

2.4

2.5

2.6.

EXHIBIT A~ SCOPE OF WORK

Initial Engineer's Report and Certification of Current Town Eligible Costs

Receive and review documentation {i.e. plans, contracts, agreements, invoices, pay applications, proofs
of payment, etc.).

Determine Town eligible costs and verify as reasonable and paid.

Perform a site visit (photegraphs of constructed improvements will be taken for the Town's record) to
verify reasonablaness of percentages complete as indicated by the contractor pay applications.
Categorize all Town eligible costs according to the Service Plan categories, or as otherwise directed by
the Town,

Meet with or call the Town as necessary to provide updates and receive answers to guestions that may
arise.

Prepare and deliver an Engineer’s Report and Certification, as a single PDF document, to the Town,

Monthly Engineer's Report and Certification of Town Eligible Costs

Receive and review documentation {contracts, agreements, invoices, pay applications, proofs of payment
and change crders that were not provided during the Initial Certification).

Determine Town eligible costs and verify as reasonable and pald.

Perform a site visit {photographs of constructed improvements will be taken for the Town's record) to
verify reasonableness of percentages complete as Indicated by the contractor pay applications.
Categorize all Town eligible costs according to the Service Plan categories, or as otherwise directed by
the Town. .

Meet with or call the Town as necessary tc provide updates and receive answers to questions that may
arise.

Prepare and deliver an Engineer’s Report and Certification, as a single PDF document, to the Town
manthly.

ON-CALL SERVICES
Tamarack is available to perform an array of additional services. Any services not outlined within a Task will be
considered “On-Call” and will be pre-approved by the Client.

DIRECT EXPENSES
Direct expenses will be billed at Cost plus 15%.

IlPage




T AM AR A GK Proposal to Provide Englneering and Cost Certification Services

§ CONSULTING LLE Town of Johnstown

EXHIBIT B — COMPENSATION
(For alf Services provided on a Time and Expense (T&E} Busis, o 2015 Charge Rates Schedule is attached for reference.}

TASK1.0 Initial Engineer's Report and Certification of Current Town Eligible Costs
Services will be hilled monthly on a T&E basis per the current Charge Rates Schedule.

TASK2.0 Monthly Engineer’s Report and Certification of Town Eligible Costs
Services will be billed monthly on & T&E basis per the current Charge Rates Schedule. Tamarack estimates that the
fees for Task 2.0 will range from $1,500 - $2,000 per month.

ON CALL SERVICES
On-Call Services will be pre-approved by the client and billed on a T&E basis per the current Charge Rates Schedule.

DIRECT EXPENSES
Direct Expenses will be billed at Cost Plus 15%.

MILEAGE
Mileage will be billed at the current IRS Standard Mileage Rate. The 2015 IRS Standard Mileage Rate is $0.575 per
mile.

4|Page




TAM AR ACK Proposal to Provide Englneering and Cost Certification Services

§ CONBULTING LLC Town of Johnstown

AR N

GENERAL CONDITIONS

These General Conditions are made a part of the attached Agreement between Tarngrack Consufting LLC (Tamarack) and the Client,
whao has authorized the described Scope of Work,

A

Authorization to Proceed: Signing the contract shall be constried as autherization by CLIENT for Tamarack to proceed with the work, unless
ctherwise provided for in the Authorlzation.

Cost Estimates. Any cost estimates provided by Tamarack Consulting LLE wifl be on a basis of experience and judgement, but since it has no
control over market conditions or bidding procedures Tamarack connot warrant that blds or ultimate construction costs will not vary from
these cost estimates,

Professignal Standards: Tamarack shall be responsible, to the fevel of competency currently malntained by other practicing professional
engineers in the same type of work In CLIENT'S community, for the professional and technical soundness, accuracy, and adequacy of all designs,
drawings, specifications, and other work and materials furnished under this authorization. Tamarack makes no other worranty, express, or
impfied.

Termination: Either CLIENT or Tamarack may terminate this Authorization by giving 30 days written notice to the other party. In such event,
CLIENT shall forthwith pay Tamarack in full for all expenses incurred and work previously authorized and performed prior to effective date of
termination is given, relatlonships and obiigations created. by this Authorization shalf be terminated upon completion of alf applicoble
requirements of this Authorization,

Mediation: Al claims, disputes, and other matters in questions arlsing out of, or relating to, this Authorization, or breach thereof, and if the
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the partles agree first to try in good faith to setile the dispute by mediation administered by
the American Arbitration Association under its Commerclal Mediation Procedures before resorting to arbitration, fitigation, or some other
dispute resolution procedure, '

Legal Expenses: In the event lega! action or arbitration Is brought by CLIENT or Tumdrack against the other to enforce any of the obilgations
heretinder or arising out of any dispute concerning the terms and conditions hereby creoted, the lasing party shall pay the prevailing party
such reasonable amounts for fees, costs, ond expenses us may be set by the court, ar arbitrator.

Limitation of Ligbility: To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Client agrees Lo limit Tamarack liabifity for the Cllent’s damages to the
sum of the Tamarack fee. This fimitation shall apply regardiess of the cause of uction or legal theory pled or asserted for lability on.this contract
between the parties.

Involces are lssued monthly by Tomarack and are due and payable on receipt. Interest is charged at a periodic rate of 1-1/2% per month (18%
APR) on alf invoices not paid within thirty (30) days, If any invoice is not paid In full within 60 days after the involce date, then in addition to
any cther remedies avalioble to Tomarack it may cease performing work hereunder upon defivery of written notice of its intention thereof to
the CLIENT. Further, in the event of such defouft, Tamarack shail have the right, but not the obligation, to cease performing work under any
other contract then autstonding between the CLIENT and Tamarack Cohsulting LLC.

Reimbursable Expenses: Sub Consultant/outside services, mileage, and reproductions etc. required to complete the job that are not itemized
in the Scope of Work are invoiced as Reimbursable Expenses, at cost plus 15%.

Additional Services. If the CLIENT requests changes in the Scope of Work, Tamarack will invoice CLIENT at Its standard hourly rates in effect at
the time of the request,

Pust Due Amounts: Should Tomarack Incur expenses to collect ony post due sum, the CLIENT agrees o pay said expenses in atddition to aif
othrer charges due under this contract.

Third Party Payments: CLIENT and Temarack agree thot payment to Tamarack is not subject to any payments due CLIENT from any third party
and payments due Tamarack wil not be delaved pending a third party disbursement.

Project Deloys: The fees related to the scope of work are good for 60 days after the date that they are prepared. If at any time during the
completion of the scope, the project is delayed for more than 60 days then Tamarack has the right to re-evaluate the fees accordingly.

Electronie Data: Tamarack shell retaln full rights to oll electronic data created by Tamarack Consulting LLG, unless specifically agreed upon as
a part of this agreement. :

SlPage"
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: §§§ T AM AR AQ K Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost Certification Services

Q ﬁ:"’, CONBULTING LLG Town of Johnstown

As stated in the General Conditicns, this propased Scope of Work and Compensation are valid for two-months from
the date of this [etter. Any additional services not a part of the Scope of Work provided will be documented and
approved by the client prior to zerforming those services. In the event there are-additional services requested, the
attached Charge Rate Schedule will apply for hourly rates, and is made part of this agreement by reference.

If you accept this proposal, piease sign beiow and return one original to return a signed copy to your Tamarack
Project Manager, Collin Koranda, collin.koranda@tamarackconsultingllc.com.

Timothy A. McCarthy, P.E.

Principal

Approved and accepted this day of , 2015, by

(Signature) (Print Name)
, for

(Title) {Client Name)

EIPagé
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AM AMC K Proposal to Provide Engineering and Cost Certification Services
CONSULTING LLC Town of Johnstown

[ E L
aEE HEE

2015 CHARGE RATES SCHEDULE

Hourly Rates

Principal 5180
Professional Engineer {P.E.)
Professional Land Surveyor (P.L.S) 5140
GIS Professional / Computer Programmer
Project Manager 5130
Project Administrator $120
Staff Engineer / Field Engineer / Construction Mahager 5120
1-Man Survey Crew 5120
2-Man Survey Crew S180
Gl$ or CAD Technician $95
Field Technician 595
Administrative Assistant $65
Printing & Reproduction®
Small format: Letter, legal ond ledger (11x17)

»  Black/white $0.10 / Page

s Color $0.45 / Page
*Prices are for in-house services; third-party printing and reproduction will be
charged as a direct expense
Large format: 12x18 and larger

s Black/white $1.25/SF

s Color 56.00 / SF
*Prices are for in-house services; third-party printing and reproduction will be
charged os a direct expense

e Direct Expenses Cost plus 15%
Mileage 50.575 per mile

Rates are subject to annual revision and may be profect specific,
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AGENDA ITEM 9D

ENGAGEMENT
AGREEMENT
(Appraisal Services)
(McCloud & Associates)




TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATION

AGENDA DATE: July 6, 2015

ITEM NUMBER: 9D

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of McCloud & Associates Fngagement Agreement (*“Agreement”)
ACTION PROPOSED: Approve McCloud & Associates’ Engagement Agreement

PRESENTED BY: Town Attorney

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: In order to assist with the JP, LLC project, the Town’s special counsel,
MaryAnn McGeady, recommended that the Town enter into an engagement agreement with McCloud & Associates
(“McCloud™). McCloud will be engaged to perform an appraisal of the portion of the land that JP, LLLC, once
purchased by the developer, will sell to the newly formed district. More specifically, JP, LLC intends to sell the
public portion of the land to the district, which includes primarily the parking lots. If the public portion of the land
is valued at a sufficient amount, the developer will be able to more easily reach its goal of issuing tax exempt bonds
in the amount of $90,000,000 for eligible public expenses.

Fees for the engagement will be paid by the Developer pursuant to the cost recovery agreement between the Town
and the Developer.

LEGAL ADVICE: The Agreement was reviewed by the Town Attorney.

FINANCIAL ADVICE: McCloud will be paid by JP, LLC from the developer’s fund.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve McCloud & Associates Engagement Agreement.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
For Approval: I move to approve McCloud & Associates Engagement Agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign
it.

For Denial: I move to deny to approval of McCloud & Associates Engagement Agreement.

Reviewed:

Tphwn Manhger
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MCCLOUD & ASSOCIATES
Real Estate Appraisers and Consultants
18690 E Plaza Drive, Suite #109
Parker, Colorado 80134

Specializing in Special
Harold S. McCloud, MAI (720) 747-4710 Purpose Property & General
hdmecloud@comeast.net Fax (303) 805-9910 Property Appraisals

June 13, 2015

Town of Johnstown
450 South Parish
Johnstown, Colorado 80534

RE: Johnstown Plaza Project
Southeast corner of Interstate 25 and Highway 34
Town of Johnstown, Colorado

Gentlemen;

This letter is to serve as a bid estimate for professional appraisal services to be rendered
by McCloud & Associates hereinafter referred to as the appraiser and the Town of
Johnstown herein after referred to as the client.

The appraiser agrees to provide an appraisal report of the above referenced property. The
appraiser’s conelusions will be communicated to the client in an appraisal report format.

‘The intended user of this appraisal report is the client and their legal counsel. The

appraiser’s conclusions are intended to be used for the acquisition of 71.96 aces which is
a portion of the Johnstown Plaza Project. This acquisition is not an eminent domain
issue.

The report will conform to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute and the Uniform
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (2014-2015). The appraisal report will
consist of a PDF file copy only. This agreement allows for engagement of the appraiser
by the Mayor Johnstown on behalf of the Town Council. The final appraisal report will
be delivered to the client on or before 60 business days assuming prompt engagement of
the appraiser. The final completion date may be extended when delays occur for reasons
beyond the control of the appraiser or if the scope of the assignment {s changed. The fee
for professional services will range from $17,000.00 to $20.000.00 (includes travel). A
retainer of $8,000.00 is required with the remainder of the fee due upon delivery of the
final PDF report.

clrl ciates Page l




In the event that this contract is not executed within the specified time, all references
regarding appraisal fees and delivery dates are null and void and no other representations
will be accepted unless with the prior written approval of the appraiser.

If, at some time after the appraiser commences this appraisal assignment, the client
decides to cancel or modify this contract, written notice signed by client of such intent
shall be delivered to the appraiser. In such case, it is agreed that the appraiser shall
receive compensation from the client for all time spent on this appraisal assignment at the
rate of $175.00 per hour not to exceed $20,000.00. Should the client decide to modify
this contract, the amount of compensation owed to the appraiser shall be agreed upon in
writing by the parties. In addition, the cost to the appraiser for exhibits, surveys, photos,
consultant fees, depositions, ete. spent prior to receipt of written notice to stop work shall
be due and payable to the appraiser.

The appraiser shall not be required to give deposition, testimony or be in attendance at
arbitration, mediation or in court by reason of this report unless prior arrangements have
been made in writing. If any deposition, arbitration, courtroom or administrative
testimony is required in connection with this report, a fee of $300.00 per hour, with a
minimum Y% day fee shall be charged for those services. Any support administrative
charges associated with any attorney requests pertaining to this assignment will be billed
at $50.00/hour plus $0.15/copy.

If this proposal meets with your approval, please execute by having the Mayor of
Johnston sign one copy of this engagement document on behalf of the Town Council and

return one copy to me with a retainer of $8,000.00.

Sincerely,

73

Harol
Certified General Appraiser
in Colorado #CGO1313633

ACCEPTED By:

By: Mayor of Johnston on behalf of the Date
Town of Johnstown
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Assumptions and Limiting Conditions

This

Appraisal Report is subject to the following Assumptions and

Limiting Conditions:

Legal Matters and Title

1.

Limitations

L.

Limitations

I.

No investigation of title to the subject property has been made, and it
is assumed to be good and marketable, free and clear of all deeds of
trust, use restrictions and reservations, easements, cases or actions
pending, tax liens, and bonded indebtedness, unless otherwise
specified.

No responsibility for legal matters is assumed.

All existing liens and encumbrances have been disregarded and the
subject property is appraised as though free and clear, unless
otherwise specified.

The subject property is valued as if free and clear of leases and
available for lease.

on the Extent of the Appraisal Process

The appraiser assumes that there are no hidden or unapparent
conditions of the subject property, subsoil or structures which would
render it more or less valuable than otherwise comparable property.
The appraiser assumes no responsibility for such conditions or for
engineering, which might be required to discover such deficiencies.

The appraiser has made no investigation into the presence or absence
of asbestos, PCBs, or other hazardous materials in the subject
property. The reader should be aware that no consideration has been
given to the impact, if any, on the valuation of the subject property if
any of these materials should be present. The appraiser assumes no
responsibility for addressing such conditions, if any, or for
engineering which might be required to discover such deficiencies.

on information contained in this Appraisal Report

Care has been taken to obtain all information from reliable sources.
However, the appraiser cannot guarantee or be responsible for the
accuracy of this information,

Any sketches in this report are intended to be visual aids and should
not be construed as surveys or engineering drawings.
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The appraiser reserves the right to amend and/or alter statements,
analyzes and conclusions if information pertinent to this
assignment is made known to the appraiser after the completion of
the report.

Limitations on value estimates contained in this Appraisal Report

L.

McClo

If the valuation contained herein relates to an estate that is less than
the whole fee simple estate and is a fractional interest only, the value
of this fractional interest, plus the value of all other fractional
interests, may or may not equal the value of the entire fee simple
estate considered as a whole.

The distribution of the total valuation in this report between land and
improvements applies only under the existing program of utilization.
The separate valuations for land and building must not be used in
conjunction with any other report and are invalid if so used.

The value reported for each geographical portion relates to such
portion only and should not be construed as applying with equal
validity to other portions of the larger parcel or tract. The value
reported for each geographical portion plus the value of all other
geographical portions may or may not equal the value of the entire
parcel or tract considered as a whole,

No consideration has been given to any furniture, trade fixtures, or
special equipment. Any discussion of those items is for reference
purposes only, and I accept no responsibility for the valuation of
those items.

In the current markset, real estate price levels for income-producing
properties are dictated by the present value of future expectations.
Under the circumstances, appraisers must quantify market
projections, which are, by their character, imprecise. Property
earnings and financial projections contained in this report represent
my informed judgment as to present and anticipated market trends.
Any cash flow analysis implemented for valuation purposes
represents an orderly financial process superimposed on a market,
which is typically erratic in behavior. Any aberrations and/or
dramatic changes in the local and national economy may impact the
subject property's capacity to generate the earnings set forth herein
with a concomitant impact on value.
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Publication and use of this Appraisal Report

L. Possession of this report or a copy thereof does not imply right of
publication, nor use for any purpose by any other than the person or
company to whom it is addressed, without the written consent of the
author,

2, The report and data investigated, except that furnished by the client,
remain the sole property of this firm.

3. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be conveyed
to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales or other
media, without the written consent and approval of the author,
particularly as to valuation conclusions, the identity of the authors or
firm with which they are connected, or any reference to the Appraisal
Institute and the Appraisal Foundation, or to the MAI and SRA
Designations.

4, I have no objection to your use of the firm’s name as the author of the
report which is to be prepared, and hereby consent to your making
reference to such report in your reports or financial statements and in
any document filed with any governmental agency, provided that: 1)
prior to making any such reference in any report or statement or any
document filed with The Securities and Exchange Commission or other
governmental agency, 1 am allowed to review and approve the text of
such reference to determine the accuracy and adequacy of such
reference to the report prepared by our firm; 2) in my opinion, the
proposed reference is not untrue or misleading and is adequate for the
purposes intended in light of the circumstances under which it is made;
and, 3) such reference to the report includes language to be approved by
this firm. —

5. Any dispute regarding matters involved with this assignment will be
decided in Douglas County, Colorado, and the parties agree that the
courts of Douglas County, Colorado will have the jurisdiction and
venue to decide any such dispute. The prevailing party in such dispute
shall be awarded from the other party reasonable attorneys' fees, costs
and expenses incurred in connection with such dispute.

6. Loss or removal of any portion of this report invalidates the entirc
!. repott.
7. Transfer of this report via electronic means is restricted to the client for

whom this report has been prepared and the specific use stated herein
and no other. Possession of an electronic copy thereof does not imply
right of publication, nor use for any purpose other than that stated in the
report or by any other than the person or company to whom it is
addressed, without the written consent of the author,

8. The appraiser is not responsible for the unauthorized use of this report.
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1.

L.

L.

1.
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General Limitations on the Appraisal

The terms of the agreement between the client and the appraiser is
such that the appraiser has no obligation to update the report or
revise it in any manner because of events or transactions occurring
subsequent to the date of such report,

The appraiser shall not be required to give testimony or be in
attendance in court by reason of this report unless prior arrangements
have been made in writing. If any courtroom or administrative
testimony 1s required in connection with this report, an additional fee
shall be charged for those services.

Other Assumptions and Limiting Conditions have been made where
they logically apply and are specified in the report.

Appraisal Institute Requirements

Disclosure of the contents of the report is governed by the bylaws and
regulations of the professional appraisal organizations with which the
appraiser is affiliated: specifically the Appraisal Institute,

When the signatory of the report is a candidate or a member of the
Appraisal Institute, its bylaws and regulations require the member or
candidate to control the use and distribution of the report. Therefore,
except as hereinafter provided, the party for whom this report was
prepared may distribute copies of the report, in its entirety, to such third
parties as may be selected by the party for whom this consulting report
was prepared. However, selected portions of this report shall not be
given to third parties without the prior written congent of the signatory of
this report. Further, neither all, nor any part of this report shall be
disseminated to the general public by use of advertising media, public
relations media, new media, sales media or other media for public
communication without the prior written consent of the signatory of this
report. Nor shall the consultants, firm, or professional organization of
which the appraiser is a member be identified without writlen consent of
the appraiser.

Extraordinary Assumptions

Asneeded

Hypothetical Conditions

As needed




Qualifications of the Appraiser

MEMBER OF:

STAFF INSTRUCTOR:

MeCloud & Associate B

; NAME: Harold S. McCloud
i EDUCATION: Bachelor of Arts, Metropolitan State College May, 1991, Major:
History: Minor: Real Estate - Various Classes & Continuing Education
Seminars
APPRAISAL
ASSOCIATIONS: MAI (Member, Appraisal Institute),

Certificate No, 9758, December 1992

Colorado Chapter President 2006

Region 2 - Regional Representative-Various Years

Colorado Chapter Director]1 993-2002

Approved Appraiser - Colorado Department of Transportation
Review Appraiser - Colorado Department of Transportation

President, Parker Properties I (Closed), Canterberry I & 11
Metropolitan Districts, 1990-Present
President-Canterberry Crossing (1,700 homes) 1993-2000
Council-member-Town of Parker 1994-1996

Member: DRCOG, CML & E-470 Authority 1994-1996
Member: National Golf Foundation - 1996-Present

Construction Lending School current, Arapahoe Community
College and Emily Griffith Opportunity School - 1993-1999
Marshall & Swift — Marshall Valuation Service

APPAISAL INSTITUTE INSTRUCTOR:

Course-Appraisal Principles

Course-Appraisal Procedures

Course-Sales Comparison Approach

Course-Site Valuation & Cost Approach

Course-Income Capitalization Approach Part I
Course-Income Capitalization Approach Part II

Course- Business Practices and Ethics

Course-Real Estate Finance, Statistics & Valuation Modeling
Course-Market Analysis & Highest and Best Use
Course-Advanced Market Analysis & Highest and Best Use
Course-Advanced Income Capitalization Approach
Course-Advanced Concepts & Case Studies

Various one-day seminars

+ Business Practices and Ethics

Subdivision Valuation

Marketability Studies: 6 Step Process Basic Applications
Two-Day Advanced Income Capitalization/Part A
Two-Day Advanced Income Capitalization/Part B

* & & @
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LICENSES: Certified General Appraiser in Colorado - #CG01313633
Colorado Real Estate Broker - #ER01100755
Class B Contractors License (inactive)
Certified — Master Scuba Diver
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BUSINESS

AFFILIATIONS: McCloud & Associates
18690 East Plaza Drive, Suite #109
Parker, Colorado 80134
Telephone: 720-747-4710
Fax; 303-805-9910

E-Mail: hdmecloud@comeast.net

APPRAISAL EXPERIENCE:
Land: Commercial pads, residential, multi-family, industrial and
commercial parcels, residential & commercial subdivisions from
100 to 3,600 acres
Adams County: Land area 100 acres to 640+ acres (Subdivisions:
Amber Creek, Northend Station, Big Dry Creek,
Buffalo Run, Buckley Ranch, Fallbrook Farms and
Tutnberry)
Arapahoe County: Land area 100 acres to 800+ acres (Subdivisions:
Antelope Hills, Fstancia and Southshore)
Broomfield County: Land area 30 acres to 2,000+ acres (Subdivisions:
Wildgrass, Hyland Village and Vista Ridge)
Douglas County: Land area 100 acres to 3,600+ acres (Subdivisions:

Hunting Hills, Stroh Ranch, Canterberry Crossing,
Pine Bluffs, Idyllwilde, Dawson Ridge, Hidden
Valley, Plum Creek, Bell Mountain Ranch, Perry
Park, Sageport, Puma Ridge and Castle Pines)
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Jefterson County: Land area 100 acres to 1,500+ acres

Elbert County: Land area % Section to 2,500+ acres (Subdivisions:

Blue Sky Ranch and Spring Valley Ranch)

Weld County: Land area 50 to 320+ acres (Subdivisions: Bartley,

Apartments:

Industrial:

Office:

Retail:

Special Purpose:

Mesa Ridge & Ridgelands II)

Low, Medium & High-rise buildings, projects & condominiums
from 6 to 800 units

Single & Multi-tenant buildings from 1,000 to 1,300,000 square feet

Low, Medium & High-rise buildings & projects, condominiums
from 2,000 to 500,000 square feet Class C to AA

Single & Multi-tenant buildings, Stand-alone, Small Strip Center to
Super Regional Mall

Agpregate production, airplane hangars/terminals, bowling alleys,
casinos, car washes, conference centers, congregate care facilities,
day-care facilitics, gentlemen’s clubs, golf courses & driving
ranges, hotels, ice arenas, mobile home parks, marina’s, motels,
mini-marts, quick-lubes, recreational properties, restaurants,
theaters veterinary clinic/hospitals and water storage facilities.
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment and Business component valued
and presented separately

Construction Experience:

I have been licensed as a general contractor since 1977, and have
extensive bid estimation experience. I have processed the
reproduction cost for more than 700 properties using the quantity
survey method per the Construction Specifications Institute {CSI).
I last functioned as a general contractor by constructing my own
3,028 square foot office building in Parker that received its
certificate of occupancy in November 2004. T am a Marghall &
Swift instructor and have past the Marshall Cost Estimation
Course.




Interests: Fee simple, leasehold and leased fee interests. Condominium and
partial ownership interests and right-of-way & facade easements.
Historic designations, historic districts and national landmarks

Major Assignments:

Douglas County - Eminent Domain - vatious projects

National Park Service — Grand Canyon National Park
Yellowstone National Park
Grand Teton National Park
Mesa Verde National Park
Lake Mead National Recreation Area
Glen Canyon National Recreation Area

| CAREER

f HISTORY: Owner; McCloud & Associates and Unique Properties Valuation and
5 Consulting. Principal Appraiser with MacTaggart and Mosier from
1990 to 1995; Associate Appraiser with Joseph Farber & Company, Inc.
from 1986 to 1990. Two vears with John Ratkovich, Century 21 as a
commercial real estate salesman. From 1969 to 1984, Held various
positions in construction from journeyman to management

E & O INSURANCE Zurich American Insurance Company - #EOC 9827639 01

EXPERT WITNESS TESTIMONY
* Adams County District Court
Arapahoe County District Court
Boulder County District Court
Denver District Court
Douglas County District Court
Elbert County District Court
Gilpin County District Court
Jefferson County District Court
Summit County District Court
Weld County District Court
Anoka County District Court, Minnesota
Cook County, Illinois
Santa Fe, New Mexico
Numerous tax appeals at County & State level
US Tax Court
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